Public Document Pack

Helen Barrington
Director of Legal and Democratic

DE RBYSH I RE Services

County Hall

County Council watoc

Derbyshire
DE4 3AG

Email:
democratic.services@derbyshire.gov.uk

PUBLIC

To: Members of Cabinet

Friday, 30 June 2023
Dear Councillor,
Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet to be held at 2.00 pm on

Monday, 10 July 2023 in Committee Room 1, County Hall, Matlock, the
agenda for which is set out below.

Yours faithfully

Helen Barrington
Director of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1. To receive apologies for absence

2. To receive declarations of interest (if any)

3. To consider Minority Group Leader questions (if any)

Minority Group Leaders in attendance at the meeting are able to ask a
question on a report on the agenda. Any questions should be provided in
writing by 12 noon at least 2 working days before the meeting.

4. To approve, as a correct record, the non-exempt minutes of the meeting
held on 15 June 2023 (Pages 1 - 8)

5. Acceptance of Department for Transport Capital Funding Grant 2023-24



10.

and Defra Air Quality Grant 2023 (Pages 9 - 14)
Director of Public Health Annual Report (Pages 15 - 60)

Request for approval of increase in value of contract for supply and delivery
of groceries and provisions (Pages 61 - 66)

Proposal to Co-locate Gamesley Early Excellence Centre (Pages 67 - 76)
Spire Lodge Capital (Pages 77 - 84)
Exclusion of the Public

To move “That under Regulation 4 (2)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following
items of business on the grounds that in view of the nature of the items of
business, that if members of the public were present, exempt information
as defined in Paragraphs 1,3 and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972 would be disclosed to them.”

PART Il - EXEMPT ITEMS

11.

12.

13.

To approve, as a correct record, the exempt minutes of the meeting held 15
June 2023 (Pages 85 - 86)

Owner Operated Plant Hire Framework - Value Amendment (Pages 87 -
92)

Long Term Waste Management Contract - update (Pages 93 - 102)



Agenda ltem 4

PUBLIC

MINUTES of a meeting of CABINET held on Thursday, 15 June 2023 in Committee
Room 1, County Hall, Matlock.

PRESENT

Councillor S Spencer (in the Chair)
Councillors A Dale, N Hoy, T King, J Patten and C Renwick.
Apologies for absence were submitted for Councillor C Hart, B Lewis and C Cupit.

Officers present: Emma Alexander (Managing Director), Helen Barrington (Director of
Legal and Democratic Services), Carol Cammiss (Executive Director - Children's
Services), Helen Coombes (Executive Director - Adult Social Care and Health), Alec
Dubberley (Head of Democratic and Registration Services), Chris Henning
(Executive Director - Place), Ellie Houlston (Director Of Public Health), Mark Kenyon
(Director of Finance and ICT) and Joe O'Sullivan (Executive Director - Corporate
Services and Transformation).

78/23 TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

Councillor Dale declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 10 as a
member of the Clay Cross Town Board.

79/23 TO CONSIDER MINORITY GROUP LEADER QUESTIONS (IF ANY)

None received.

80/23 TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE NON-EXEMPT
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 MAY 2023

RESOLVED:

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 18
May 2023.

81/23 FOSTERING ANNUAL ALLOWANCE INCREASE

Councillor J Patten introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, seeking approval for the proposed 10.5%
annual increase to the weekly fostering allowance and associated
allowances.

RESOLVED:

Page 1



82/23

83/23

To approve the implementation of 10.5% increase for the financial year
2023/2024, as set out in Option 2 of the report.

PROPOSAL TO ESTABLISH AN EDGE OF CARE AND PREVENTION
SERVICE

Councillor A Dale introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, seeking approval to create an Edge of Care and
Prevention service within Children’s Services.

RESOLVED to:

1) Approve the creation of an Edge of Care and Prevention service
within children’s services, specifically focused on edge of care and
prevention support, as part of the Council’s strategic objective to
improve outcomes for children and young people through early
intervention and prevention;

2) Approve the investment of £330,000 for the first six months within
this financial year and £660,000 for the following financial year
from the Supporting Families Reserve, enabling the Edge of Care
and Prevention model to be recruited to and implemented from
October 2023; and

3) Support the development of the service and keep oversight of the
impact through an interim report, which will be provided to Cabinet
in the form of the first full-year evaluation.

HEALTH AND CARE ACT 2022 CAP ON CARE COSTS AND CO-
FUNDING POLICY

Councillor N Hoy introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, seeking authorisation to begin consultation on
changing the charging policy for local residents in receipt of Adult Social
Care Support in the community.

RESOLVED to:
1) Approve the programme of formal consultation for a period of 12
weeks on the three options concerning the proposal to update and

redesign the current Co-Funding Charging Policy;

2) Approve the programme of formal consultation for a period of 12
weeks on the Disability Related Expenditure process; and

Page 2



84/23

85/23

86/23

3) Receive a further report following the conclusion of the
consultation process, including an updated Equality Impact
Analysis.

DERBY AND DERBYSHIRE INTEGRATED CARE STRATEGY 2023

Councillor N Hoy introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, seeking approval for the adoption of the
Integrated Care Strategy for Derby and Derbyshire.

RESOLVED to:

1) Approve the adoption of the Integrated Care Strategy for Derby
and Derbyshire; and

2) Delegate authority to the Director of Public Health, in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Health and Communities, to agree
any minor technical amendments to the Strategy that may be
required prior to its final publication.

HOUSING SUPPORT FOR LOCAL COMMUNITIES

Councillor N Hoy introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, seeking approval for the funding allocated to the
four District and Borough Councils that receive a percentage of the
Council Tax allocation for residential properties in their local government
area and the associated funding.

RESOLVED to:

1) Approve the Council Tax allocation to support local housing
priorities, covering the use of £0.562m from the Council Tax
Allocation to support local housing priorities budget for Amber
Valley, Derbyshire Dales, High Peak and South Derbyshire
District/Borough Councils for 2023-2025; and

2) Agree to support a review of the use of Second Homes Tax
allocation, to deliver housing support for local communities with
key partners and stakeholders prior to reconsideration in 2025-
2027.

PROPOSALS TO CONSULT ON THE POTENTIAL RELOCATION OF
CLAY CROSS AND STAVELEY LIBRARIES

Councillor S Spencer introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, in relation to proposals to consult on

Page 3



opportunities for the potential relocation of Clay Cross and Staveley
libraries.

RESOLVED to:

1) Note the opportunities presented by the Town Deal programme to
support with wider ambitions and improvements to Library
Services;

2) Approve that consultation with the public and key stakeholders be
undertaken on the opportunity presented by the Clay Cross and
Staveley Town Deals, respectively, to relocate existing libraries;

3) Note that the Executive Director for Pace, in liaison with the
Cabinet Member for Strategic Leadership, Culture and Tourism
and the Director of Legal and Democratic Services will finalise and
publish the public consultation documents; and

4) Note that a further report will be submitted to Cabinet providing an
update on the outcome of the public consultation and to propose
next steps.

87/123 A STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK FOR COUNCIL ACTION TO DELIVER
NET ZERO ENERGY IN DERBYSHIRE

Councillor T King introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, seeking the endorsement of a Strategic
Framework (and a Delivery Plan) for Council action to secure net zero
energy in Derbyshire.

RESOLVED:

To endorse a Strategic Framework and Delivery Plan for Council Action
to secure net zero energy in Derbyshire.

88/23 FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY REVIEW

Councillor C Renwick introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, that sought approval of the review version of the
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (LFRMS) and all supporting
documentation contained in the report.

RESOLVED to:

1) Approve the reviewed version of the Local Flood Risk
Management Strategy (LFRMS) and all supporting documentation

Page 4



89/23

90/23

contained in the report; and

2) Give authority to the Executive Director for Place, to make any
corrective or minor technical amendments, to the review version of
the LFRMS and supporting documentation, approved by Cabinet
that might be necessary, and report to the Cabinet Member for
Highways, Assets and Transport for the LFRMS annual review.

REGENERATION PIPELINE PROGRAMME UPDATE

Councillor C Renwick introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, that gave an update in relation to the
Regeneration Pipeline Programme.

RESOLVED to:

1) Approve for the Sixes Project and the Investment Zone to be
added to the Regeneration Pipeline;

2) Delegate approval to the Executive Director for Place, in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Clean Growth and
Regeneration to prepare and submit proposals to Government to
create an East Midlands Investment Zone;

3) Approve, in principle, the provision of up to £800,000 from the
Climate Change Reserve to support the ‘Sixes’ project to provide
hydrogen buses and re-fuelling facilities in the south of the
County; and

4) Delegate approval for the Executive Director for Place, in liaison
with the Cabinet Member for Infrastructure and Environment, the
Director of Legal and Democratic Services and the Director of
Finance and ICT, to conclude negotiations with partners over the
Sixes project and to enter into necessary agreements.

ACCEPTANCE OF THE ACTIVE TRAVEL TRANCHE 4 FUNDING
FROM THE DEPARTMENT FOR TRANSPORT

Councillor C Renwick introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, which sought approval to accept the Active
Travel Tranche 4 grant, for £3,005,000 awarded by Active Travel
England on behalf of the Department for Transport.

RESOLVED:

To formally accept the Active Travel Tranche 4 grant from the

Page 5



91/23

92/23

93/23

94/23

Department for Transport for £3,005,000 provided under Section 31 of
the Local Government Act 2003.

FORWARD PLAN

Councillor S Spencer introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, which presented the Executive’s Forward Plan
for the period 1 June — 30 September 2023.

RESOLVED:

To note the contents of the Forward Plan attached to the report at
Appendix 2.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That under Regulation 4(2)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012, the public are excluded from the meeting for the
remaining business on the grounds that in view of the nature of the items
of business, that if members of the public were present, exempt
information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 would be disclosed to them.

RATIONALISATION OF PROPERTY ASSETS IN THE
CHESTERFIELD LOCALITY

Councillor S Spencer introduced a report in relation to the rationalisation
of Property Assets in the Chesterfield Locality.

RESOLVED:

To approve the recommendations as detailed in the not for publication
report.

DERBYSHIRE POLICE - VEHICLE COMMISSIONING,
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND BREAKDOWN

Councillor C Renwick introduced a report, which had been circulated in
advance of the meeting, seeking approval for a contract extension in
respect of a contract for vehicle commissioning, maintenance, repair and
breakdown for Derbyshire Police vehicles.

RESOLVED:

Page 6



To approve the recommendation as detailed in the not for publication
report.

The meeting finished at 2.35 pm

Page 7/



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

DERBYSHIRE
County Council

FOR PUBLICATION
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
10 July 2023
Report of the Executive Director - Place

Acceptance of Additional Department for Transport Maintenance and
Pothole Repair Funding Grant 2023-24 and Defra Air Quality Grant 2023
(Cabinet Member for Highways, Assets and Transport)

1. Divisions Affected
1.1 County-wide.
2. Key Decision

2.1 These are key decisions because they are each likely to result in the
Council incurring expenditure which is, or savings which are significant
having regard to the budget for the service or function concerned (this is
currently defined as £500,000) and/or are likely to be significant in terms
of their effect on communities living or working in an area comprising
two or more electoral areas in the County.

3. Purpose

3.1 To seek Cabinet approval to: (a) accept an award to the Council from
the Department for Transport (DfT) of additional Highways Maintenance
and Pothole Repair funding for 2023-24; (b) to accept the award from
the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) in
respect of the Air Quality Grant 2023; (c) to seek authorisation to
delegate any decisions in relation to these projects to the Director for
Highways, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways
Assets and Transport; and (d) to seek authorisation to delegate to the

Page 9



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Authority’s Section 151 Officer that the relevant grant conditions are
accepted and discharged appropriately when provided.

Information and Analysis

DfT Additional Highways Maintenance and Pothole Repair Funding
2023-24

On 15 March 2023, the DfT announced an additional £200m nationally
to spend on local roads in addition to the previously announced local
highways maintenance funding of £2.7b between 2022 and 2025.

As part of this, Derbyshire has been awarded at least an additional
£4.2m for 2023-24 (with the final amount to be confirmed as soon as
grant conditions are received). The DfT has stated that it is up to each
Highway Authority how to spend this funding in order to fulfil their
statutory duty under Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980, based on
local knowledge, circumstances and priorities.

Work is currently underway identifying locations where this funding can
be targeted to improve the condition of the network for highway users.
Delivery of the works will be on a mixed economy basis, similarly to the
Highways Capital Scheme Programme works.

Defra Air Quality Grant 2023

On 8 February 2023, the Council was notified of its successful bid
against Defra’s annual Air Quality Grant to improve air quality in the
County by using and augmenting and developing its existing Pre-
emptive Traffic Management System that will ultimately allow strategic
traffic management decisions to be made based on near real time
emissions and predicted future emissions.

The total amount of grant was for £0.278m and is split as follows:

e Revenue Funding - £64,502
e Capital Funding - £213,000.

This will lead to improved air quality assessments relating to vehicular
emissions allowing us to report on poor air quality and advising re-
routing of traffic by suggesting the use of alternative routes. It will also
provide more reliable bus services as the proposal will improve the
efficiency of the network, co-ordinating with the Traffic Management
System and Traffic Light Priority System for buses.

Page 10



4.7

The potential to reduce congestion and the subsequent improvements
in air quality will also benefit and encourage more active forms of travel,
potentially making the use of walking and cycling more attractive,
leading to additional health benefits over and above the reduction in
emissions.

5. Consultation

5.1  Not required.

6. Alternative Options Considered

6.1 Do Nothing - By doing nothing and not accepting these grants would
prevent the progression and delivery of both projects.

7. Implications

7.1  Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the
preparation of the report.

8. Background Papers

8.1  Air Quality Bid documents.

9. Appendices

9.1 Appendix 1 — Implications.

10. Recommendations

That Cabinet:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Approves acceptance of the award to the Council by the Department
for Transport of the additional Highways Maintenance and Pothole
Repair funding for 2023-24 (as set out in paragraph 4.2).

Approves acceptance of the award to the Council by the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) in respect of the air
quality.

Delegates any decisions in relation to these projects to the Director
for Highways, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways
Assets and Transport.

Delegates to the Authority’s Section 151 Officer that the relevant
grant conditions are accepted and discharged appropriately when
provided.

Page 11



11. Reasons for Recommendations

11.1 To enable the delivery of the Highway Maintenance and Pothole Repair
Programme and the Air Quality Improvement Project referred to in this
report, in accordance with the Council’s Financial Regulations.

12. Is it necessary to waive the call in period?

12.1 No.
Report Paul Beckett Contact Paul.Beckett@derbyshire.gov.uk
Author: details:

Page 12



Appendix 1
Implications

Financial

1.1 DfT has awarded additional Highways Maintenance and Pothole Repair
funding for 2023-24 in the region of £4.2m.

1.2 Defra has awarded an Air Quality Improvement grant following a
successful bid process submission to Defra by the Council. The total
grant is £0.28m.

Legal

2.1 The Council, as Highway Authority, has a duty to maintain the Highway
in a safe condition under Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980. The
award of the additional Highways Maintenance and Pothole Repair
funding will assist the Council in fulfilling that duty.

Human Resources

3.1 Services will continue to be delivered using a mixed economy model of
in-house services with support from external providers and suppliers.

Information Technology

4.1 Information Technology will be procured using approved procedures.

Equalities Impact

5.1 Not applicable.

Corporate objectives and priorities for change

6.1  The delivery of Highway Improvements to provide well managed roads
and the priority to reduce greenhouse emissions as part of the Climate
Change Strategy are specific headline initiatives within the Council Plan

2021-2025.

Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental Sustainability,
Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding)

Health and Safety

7.1 The delivery of the Air Quality Project will give health benefits to
adjacent communities by the improvement in air quality.

Page 13



7.2

Risk Management

Regular board meetings will monitor the progress, delivery and costs to
enable early warnings to be given of possible issues and to enable
effective mitigation measures.

Page 14



Agenda Item 6

DERBYSHIRE
County Council

FOR PUBLICATION

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
Monday, 10 July 2023
Report of the Director - Public Health

Director of Public Health Annual Report 2023

(Cabinet Member for Health and Communities)
1. Divisions Affected

Countywide

2. Key Decision
2.1 This is a Key Decision as it affects two or more electoral wards.
3. Purpose

3.1 To inform Cabinet of the production of the Director of Public Health
Annual Report for 2023

3.2 To seek Cabinet approval to publish the Director of Public Health
Annual Report for 2023.

4. Information and Analysis

4.1 The Health & Social Care Act 2023 amended the National Health
Service Act 2006 (the 2006 Act’) by placing a duty on the Director of
Public Health to produce an annual report on the health of the local
population and on the County Council to publish the report. The content
and structure of the report is for local determination and the Director can
tailor the report to align with local issues and priorities.

Page 15



4.2 This year’s annual report has focussed on mental health and wellbeing
of the people in Derbyshire. The report builds on the successful Let's
Chat campaign, which encouraged the population of Derbyshire to think
about mental wellbeing, make connections with others and to seek
support.

4.3 Last year’s report, which focused on health inequalities in Derbyshire
and the Covid-19 pandemic and outlined how partners would continue
to step up to the challenge of living with the virus. This year’s report
contains a summary of those recommendations and what has been
done in the last year.

4.4 The report reflects on the ongoing challenges from the Covid-19
pandemic recovery and the growing cost-of-living pressures. The report
will look at key facts and figures, consider how mental health impacts
across the life course, summarise how public health support mental
health and wellbeing in Derbyshire and describes a range of practical
actions the population can take to support their mental health and
wellbeing and how they can support others.

4.5 The report looks at mental health and wellbeing through a life course
approach and also considers a population health approach, which looks
at promoting mental health across the whole population by looking at
the needs of different groups of people. The report also looks at the
Core20PLUSS5 approach, which was developed by the NHS, which aims
to reduce inequalities in healthcare across the population by looking at
specific population groups.

4.6 Finally, the report offers next steps and three stages of
recommendations:

4.6.1 Across the system
4.6.2 Locally
4.6.3 Individually
5. Consultation
5.1 Following publication of the report, it will be used as a tool to further
engage and involve stakeholders in relation to pieces of work to support

the population of Derbyshire with their mental health and wellbeing.

6. Alternative Options Considered

Page 16



6.1 Do nothing. This is not an option as there is a statutory duty for the
Director of Public Health to write an annual report and a statutory duty
for the County Council to publish the report.

7. Implications

7.1 Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the
preparation of the report.

8. Background Papers

8.1 Director of Public Health Annual Report 2022 — Cabinet Meeting 28 July
2022

8.2 Director of Public Health Annual Report 2022

9. Appendices

9.1  Appendix 1 — Implications

9.2 Appendix 2 — Director of Public Health Annual Report 2023

10. Recommendation(s)

That Cabinet:

a) Notes the production of the Director of Public Health Annual Report
2023 and the recommendations contained within it.

b) Approves the formal publication of the Director of Public Health Annual
Report 2023.

c) Reflects on the recommendations made within the report to consider
what further action the County Council can take to improve and support the
mental health and wellbeing of the population of Derbyshire.

1.

Reasons for Recommendation(s)

11.1 The Director of Public Health has a statutory duty to prepare an annual

report.

11.2 The Council has a statutory duty to publish the Director of Public Health

Annual Report.

Page 17


https://derbyshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=1117&Ver=4
https://derbyshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=1117&Ver=4
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/specialist_reports_and_assessments/2022/DPHAR2022.pdf

11.3 The Council needs to consider how it can take action in partnership with
other bodies to improve and support the mental health and wellbeing of
the population of Derbyshire.

12. Is it necessary to waive the call in period?

12.1 No

Report Annette Appleton  Contact annette.appleton@derbyshire.gov.uk
Author: details:

Page 18



Appendix 1
Implications

Financial

1.1 The costs associated with the development and publication of the 2023
Director of Public Health Annual Report can be met from within existing
public health budgets.

Legal

2.1 Section 31 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 amended the
National Health Service Act 2006 by:

(a) Placing a statutory duty on the Director of Public Health to
write an annual report on the health of the people in the area
of the local authority (section 73B(3) of the 2006 Act); and

(b) Placing a statutory duty on the local authority to publish the
report (section 73B(6) of the 2006 Act).

2.2 Guidance published by the Department of Health in 2013 (‘Directors of
Public Health in Local Government: Roles, Responsibilities and
Context) states that the content and structure of the report may be
decided locally.

Human Resources

3.1 There are no Human Resources implications.

Information Technology

4.1 There are no Information Technology implications.

Equalities Impact

5.1 There are no equalities impact implications of this report.

Corporate objectives and priorities for change

6.1 The Director of Public Health Annual Report provides information and
insight to support the Council Plan priorities of Resilient, Healthy and
Safe Communities and Effective Early Help for Individuals and
Communities.

Page 19



Page 20



t . W
Let’s Chat about

Mental Health
and Wellbeing



Contents

1. Foreword from Director of Public Health 3
2. Update on last year’s report 4
3. Aims and objectives of the report 6
4. Introduction 7
5. Mental health through the life course 9
6. The impact on mental health from Covid-19 17
7. The impact of cost-of-living pressures on mental health 21
8. Population mental health 25
9. Working together to support people with their mental health

and wellbeing across Derbyshire 27
10. Do you need further advice or support? 32
11. Next steps and recommendations 33
12. Acknowledgements 36
13. Bibliography, sources and further reading 37

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofﬁt&@eéth Qzal Report 2023




Foreword from Director of Public Health

I am delighted to be sharing with you my first annual report as Director of Public
Health for Derbyshire, which considers the theme of mental health and wellbeing.

Emotional health and mental wellbeing affects all aspects of our lives. Mental wellbeing is
about feeling good and functioning well, both as individuals and as communities. It is also
about our ability to cope with life’s challenges and making the most of life’s opportunities.

Supporting mental health and wellbeing is a personal passion and | want to do all I caniin
this role to promote this area of work. | am a trained mental health first aider which means
that | can offer support to colleagues in the workplace. Outside of work | regularly take time
to reflect on my own mental health and wellbeing and find spending time outside in green
spaces is something that particularly helps me.

The last year has been challenging for many people in Derbyshire due to cost-of-living
pressures and these have impacted on health and wellbeing in many ways. Colleagues
across Public Health have worked tirelessly, often in partnership with a range of local
organisations to make sure that mental health advice and support is widely available. This
report showcases some of those initiatives, as well as considering some of the drivers of
poor mental health that currently exist in Derbyshire.

It is important that we all take time to reflect and talk about our mental health during
these tough times. In 2022 we launched the Let’s Chat campaign which you can find out
more about in this report. We have placed signs on benches throughout Derbyshire to
encourage people to think about their mental wellbeing, to make connections with others
and to seek support. The campaign has seen 700 Let’s Chat bench signs in place and 120
organisations have signed up to support the initiative. We have included images of some
of these benches throughout the report and we have received feedback that people have
used this shared space to start conversations about their mental wellbeing with others.

Building on the momentum of that campaign my message in this report is simple - let’s build
a positive and ongoing conversation about mental health across Derbyshire by everyone
committing to the following: Let’s Chat, Let’s Ask, Let’s Listen. You can find out more about
these pledges and the steps you can take to support them at the end of this report.

Thank you for taking the time to read this report.

Best Wishes
Ellie Houlston
Director of Public Health - Derbyshire County Council

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicﬁga@uﬁgort 2023




Update on last year’s report

Last year, the 2022 Director of Public Health Annual Report considered the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic on communities in Derbyshire. The report explored themes of health
inequalities in relation to the Coronavirus and outlined how partners would continue to
step up to the challenge together of living with the virus. Below is a summary of the 2022

recommendations and what we did. Here you can see the full details of what we did.

N
A

-l 4

O O O6C

7

f

S o

We said we would:

Embed ongoing prevention activity
from Covid-19 as part of an all-
hazard approach to prevention of
infectious diseases.

We said we would:

Utilise information known about
pre-existing inequalities and the
impact of Covid-19 to focus on
improving health outcomes for
those groups that have experienced
the greatest impact in Derbyshire.

We said we would:

Work collaboratively with system
partners to build a shared
understanding of health inequalities
across the system to make
sustained progress in reducing
these longstanding and

worsening inequalities.

We said we would:

Retain learning from the Covid-19
pandemic to ensure Local Authority
Public Health is in a position to

hit the ground running again in

the event of a future pandemic,
Covid-19 or other disease.

730 KA D
1

Since the report was published
We have worked with partners

to encourage the uptake of all
vaccinations and promote infection
prevention control.

Since the report was published
We have highlighted the differences
in the underlying health of people
adversely affected by Covid-19 in the
most deprived communities.

Since the report was published
We have worked with partners to
support the development of a Health
Inequalities Strategy for Derby and
Derbyshire, and we are working with
the Health and Wellbeing Board to
influence partners to develop actions
to address health inequalities.

Since the report was published
We have completed a lessons learnt
exercise to inform future planning
and developed our Health Protection
Team. Derbyshire is working
alongside the Local Government
Association to share information

as part of the Public Inquiry so that
lessons can be shared nationally.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofr_igtéfgeéth Qﬂal Report 2023

i


https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/specialist_reports_and_assessments/2022/DPHAR2022.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/kit/DPH/DPH_AR_2023_Recommendations_from_2022_update_-_long_version.docx

2. Update on last year’s report

We said we would: Since the report was published

Maximise the opportunities created by We have continued to utilise one

the positive role of Derbyshire Public  off funding to support additional

Health to influence pieces of work that community-based activity, which

improve health outcomes. has increased community resilience,
tackled cost-of-living pressures, and
promoted better mental health.

Co-produce solutions with partners We have worked with people

and communities to help design recovering from addiction via the GRID

initiatives and services that contribute voices project, strengthened the public

towards reducing health inequalities.  health co-production community of
practice so our team can share skills
and knowledge. We have also secured
external funding to work alongside
communities to understand their

needs with an academic partner. This
is an ongoing journey, and we are
further committed to strengthening co-
production in Derbyshire Public Health

and with our partners.

/\

&7

<

LT

We said we would: Since the report was published
Maximise the opportunities created We have worked with colleagues

by the launch of the Integrated Care to develop the NHS Core 20PLUS5
System to ensure there is a renewed approach for addressing health

focus on health inequalities within inequalities and ensure key

NHS, the broader Public Sector and preventative messages are included
voluntary sector. in the Integrated Care Strategy.

Work with partners to place health We have further developed Feeding
inequalities into their work and Derbyshire work to tackle issues
tackle social deprivation at root relating to food insecurity and
cause via investment from upstream  provided enhanced support in this
preventative interventions. time of cost-of-living pressures. We
have also enhanced our Derbyshire
Discretionary Fund and advisory

4 L ] & S
+ services to prevent people becoming
%9 | | ’ more financially vulnerable.
(4N
- )

e We said we would: Since the report was published

We said we would: Since the report was published
Facilitate the more systematic use We have coordinated a

of a population health management  programme which has engaged
approach within Derbyshire to primary care and the NHS to test
systematically identify and target preventative clinical actions that
health inequalities. reduce health inequalities.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Pu blicﬁé’fa@uﬁsort 2023

i



Aims and objectives of the report

This year’s report focuses on mental health and wellbeing of people in Derbyshire. It will
reflect on the ongoing challenges from the Covid-19 pandemic recovery and the growing
cost-of-living pressures.

The report will do this by:
+ Outlining key facts and figures in relation to mental health and wellbeing in Derbyshire.
+ Considering how your mental health can be impacted across the life course.

+ Describe how Covid-19 and cost-of-living pressures have shaped mental health and
wellbeing in Derbyshire.

« Summarising how Public Health supports mental health and wellbeing in Derbyshire.

« Describing a range of practical actions you can take to support your own mental health
and wellbeing and how to support others.

Throughout the report you will see various images of benches.
Last year the #LetsChat campaign raised awareness of the
importance of talking about mental health.

Local photographer Tony Fisher travelled around the county taking pictures of the benches
being used. These images are being shared in the report alongside a range of stories from
professionals and local people to reaffirm the message that talking openly about your
mental health is important. The case studies featured throughout the report showcase local
actions and interventions that contribute to a wider systematic approach to promoting
mental wellbeing. The report concludes with a range of recommendations about how we can
strengthen our approach further in Derbyshire.

Finally, we recognise that for many people mental health is a key area of concern at present
so we have included a number of links and information about where you can find further
help, advice, and support.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofp&t&@eéth 26al Report 2023

O



3 Introduction

What is mental health and wellbeing?

Mental health plays an essential role in everyone’s life and is more than mental ill health. There

are many ways to describe mental health and wellbeing. One of them is described as how we feel

or cope with life. Another more detailed definition is a state of wellbeing where a person can work
productively, cope with stresses in life and contribute to their community. We can define poor mental
health and wellbeing as when we can’t cope with challenges in life and contribute to our community.
Good mental health and wellbeing has a direct link with good physical health, better quality of life
and employment prospects. Therefore, good mental health is essential for us to live well and thrive.

Research shows why good mental health and wellbeing is so important:

+ People with good mental wellbeing are 1.14 times more likely to recover from a physical illness
than those with poor mental wellbeing.

+ A person with a serious mental health condition could live 15 to 20 years less than the people
without a condition.

+ A person who has a long-term illness, can have more complications if they also have a mental
health condition. This could impact on the cost of their care, which could be around 50% more.

Mental illness or mental ill health are broad terms and can include a range of conditions like mild
depression to schizophrenia. Many people are impacted by mental ill health at some pointin
their life. One in four people will experience a mental health issue in a year and 2.in 100 people
will experience severe mental illness. The most common conditions are depression and anxiety.

Good mental health and wellbeing is essential to everyone’s health and is a priority for Public
Health in Derbyshire. Public Health has an important role in promoting good mental wellbeing and
supporting people who may need additional advice, guidance, or information. The Mental Health
First Aid (MHFA) England infographic below summarises the complexity of mental health and how
stigma needs to be addressed at all points. Public Health’s work in Derbyshire is to create conditions
for positive mental wellbeing and challenge stigma and negative perceptions of mental health.

Figure 1. The Mental Health Continuum

The infographic shows

No absolutes Maximum mental The continuum . . . -
wellbeing/fitness that mental wellbeing can
range from not having
A person with a diagnosis A person with no mental a diagnosis to having a
of a serious mental illness iliness or disorder and . .
but whao copes well and positive mental health severe dlagnOSIS. It also

has positive mental health

shows that even if you are
diagnosed with mental
illness, you can still live a
positive life. You can also
have no diagnosis but

No
p . .
> diagnosis

Severe _
diagnosis

A person with a A person with no

diagnosis of a serious diagnosed mental lliness
mental illness and who or disorder bul who has have poor mental health
has paor mental health poor mental health The infographic h|ghl|ghts

that stigma can be a

Minimum mental - . .
/ r“f‘“ barrier which can prevent
(0]

FA Englond

wellbeing/fitness o
a person from obtaining a

HEh Engler diagnosis or seeking help.

Image used with permission of MHFA England®. For more information on how to spot signs of mental ill health and how
to support others on a first aid basis, please see www.mhfaengland.org to find your Mental Health First Aid course.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicpeé'.(ﬁ@u?%fort 2023

i


https://www.adph.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/What-Good-Public-Mental-Health-Looks-Like-Final.pdf
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing.aspx
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing.aspx
http://www.mhfaengland.org

4. Introduction

What can impact mental health and wellbeing?

The above section summarised what mental health and wellbeing is and how we can
visualise it as a continuum. This next section explores what can positively or negatively
support our mental health and wellbeing.

There are many factors that can affect mental health. The
factors that contribute to good or better mental health are
called protective factors. Protective factors include personal
attributes like problem-solving skills, coping skills, good
physical health, strong cultural identity, social support, and
positive relationships.

There are also factors that contribute to poorer mental health and these are called the risk
factors. Risk factors can include biological factors, like the human body’s brain chemistry or
genes, long term physical health problems and personal life experiences like trauma or abuse.

The tree diagram below shows examples of protective factors that contribute to better mental
health and risk factors that contribute to poorer mental health. The diagram also shows that
some of these factors relate to an individual’s situation and others relate to the community
and environment around us. A key aim for Public Health is reducing risk factors and increasing
protective factors, so that good mental health and wellbeing can be promoted.

Figure 2. Factors that influence mental health

* Positive relationships

¢ Supportive inclusive
communities

* Community networksand
support

¢ Social participation

* Organised communities

* Access to good work, and
meaningful occupation

Community factors

Access to drugs and alcohol, violence
Displacement

Isolation and alienation

Poverty, poor nutrition, housing
Unemployment, work stress

Lack of soclal Infrastructure

Poor education, transport, housing

L )

Contributing factors to
poorer mental health

b— :
———)»
Poor experience at school

* Positive parent/carer-child Caring responsiblilities
relationship, positive Chronic physical health problems
attachment and early bonding Difficult early life experiences,
Literacy skills stress life events such as exposure

Contributing factors to
better mental health

.

* Soclal and familial support to abuse

* Early cognitive stimulation * Neurochemical and geneticfactors
* Stress management skills * Early pregnancies, low birth weight,
* Adaptability Individual factors perinatal complications

.

Autonomy

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofﬁt&@eéth anl Report 2023

O



Mental health through the life course

The introduction discussed the broad range of factors that can influence mental health and
wellbeing. This next section will go into more detail on these factors.

The tree diagram, in the previous section, showed that mental health is impacted by individual
and community factors, which are often called the wider determinants of health and influence

health across the lifespan. The wider determinants of health are defined as the environmental,
economic, and social conditions in which people are born, grow up, live, and work in. Some of

these factors are protective, whereas others are risks for poor mental health and wellbeing.

A life course approach is a tool used in Public Health to look at the impact of health across

the whole lifespan. The approach looks at points in life where people can be supported to live
longer and healthier lives, for example supporting people in the early years of life can have an
impact for the rest of that child’s life. The approach considers how the wider determinants of
health can be changed to support longer, healthier lives. Changes can be through improving the
environments in which people live, such as a child having enough food and a safe home. The
approach helps to identify how the health and wellbeing of current and future generations can
be improved. A life course approach is different to a disease-oriented approach, which often
focuses on a single condition at a single stage of life. The life course approach considers when,
where and how someone can be supported in all aspects of their health.

The life course approach is not just for physical health, and it can be used for mental health
and wellbeing. As described before, everyone has mental health and people can experience
problems with mental health at any stage of life. The life course approach can identify points
in time where the risks of mental health issues can increase and when action can be taken.
These points can be linked to transitions like leaving home, the menopause or the loss of close
relationships. Some key transition points for mental health and wellbeing are shown in the
infographic below:

The life course approach

& -_—
Preconception Infancy and early Childhood and Working age and Older people
years (0 to 5) adolescence (5 to 24) adults (16 to 64)

Source: Public Health England

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Pu blicﬁga@uﬁgort 2023

D


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-life-course-approach-to-prevention/health-matters-prevention-a-life-course-approach
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-life-course-approach-to-prevention/health-matters-prevention-a-life-course-approach

5. Mental health through the life course

Preconception and the perinatal period

Preconception health is a woman’s health before she becomes pregnant.
Perinatal mental health refers to the emotional and psychological
wellbeing of parents during pregnancy and up to two years after having
a baby. These are important times during the life course and can have an
impact on future generations.

The most common perinatal health problems are depression, anxiety,
postpartum psychosis, and postpartum post-traumatic stress disorder.
Around 10-20% of women and 10% of men will experience some form of
mental ill health when having a baby.

s &
Perinatal mental health issues can affect the parents’ ability to bond with

the baby. For example, poor attachment as a baby can affect a baby’s brain
leading to delays in their thinking, language and social skills. It can affect a baby’s relationship
formation which can lead to behavioural issues and can continue into adulthood.

Early identification, support and treatment is vital and can help improve the mental health
outcomes for both the parent and the baby.

What support is available in Derbyshire?

The NHS Health Visiting Service is a universal offer for all families. The NHS Health Visitors
support women with their mental health and wellbeing and can support them with perinatal
mental illness. The offer is not just for women. The health Visiting Service will also support men.
A popular option for men in Derbyshire is access to the DadPad app. This free app provides
practical support from how to hold your baby to supporting your own health and wellbeing. If
men need some more help, the app also provides details of local support groups and services,
and guidance on how to seek help when needed for their partners and themselves.

More information can be found on the Derbyshire Family Health Service website.

The NHS also provides a specialist Perinatal Mental Health Service in Derbyshire that
supports women with severe mental health issues. Midwives, GPs, Health Visitors and other
professionals can refer mothers and their babies to these services.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofp&t&@eéthgbal Report 2023



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-mental-health-jsna-toolkit/4-perinatal-mental-health
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20483973/
https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/child-health-development/attachment-early-years
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/commissioning-of-public-health-services-for-children/early-years-high-impact-area-2-supporting-maternal-and-family-mental-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/commissioning-of-public-health-services-for-children/early-years-high-impact-area-2-supporting-maternal-and-family-mental-health
http://derbyshirefamilyhealthservice.nhs.uk/
https://www.derbyshirehealthcareft.nhs.uk/services/mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing/perinatal-mother-and-baby-services

5. Mental health through the life course

Infancy and early years

The previous section showed that experiences before birth and during the first
few years of life can influence physical and emotional development during
Q childhood and into adulthood.

‘t’ Research suggests that during the first 1,000 days of a child’s life the brain has an
r exceptional ability to develop, adapt to its environment, and learn information.
Early life experiences, such as developing positive relationships with caregivers,
are central to a child’s development and building good infant mental health.

For some young children they may have poor relationships and emotional wellbeing that can
lead to behavioural and developmental problems. In later childhood this can result in poor
mental health outcomes such as anxiety, depression, and self-harm.

When taking a life course approach, it is clear that supporting families early is key. Public
Health will continue to support parents and caregivers with their own emotional wellbeing and
relationship with their baby as this has an impact on a child’s wellbeing in their early years.
The case study below describes how this happens in Derbyshire through emotional wellbeing
support groups for new parents.

Let’s chat to Vicky about emotional wellbeing postnatal
support groups

Vicky is a Specialist Health Visitor at Derbyshire Community Health Services.
She is the project lead for the Derbyshire pilot for emotional wellbeing support groups.

Can you tell us about the support groups and why these were introduced?

Supporting parents with their emotional wellbeing in the perinatal period is very important for
the whole family. Health Visitors reported that due to the restrictions and lockdowns during the
pandemic parents were experiencing poor mental health, social isolation and had challenges
accessing the support they needed. Recognising this, these groups were set up to provide early
support with emotional wellbeing to all new parents. They also aimed to help reduce the need
for onward referral to specialist mental health services.

The groups were held at a Children’s Centre and were
facilitated by a health visitor, an early years’ worker
and a parent volunteer. Topics discussed included
becoming a parent, sleep, understanding your baby
and emotional wellbeing.

What difference did this make to parents in Derbyshire
and what are the next steps for this project?

There was positive feedback from facilitators and parents.
The group provided a safe space where parents could

share their experiences, allowing them to reflect on being

a parent and their relationship with their baby. The groups
also strengthened links within the community as volunteers
partnered with health and early years staff to deliver the
sessions. Due to the success of these groups, there are
plans to roll them out to other areas across Derbyshire.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicpeé'.tﬁ@uagﬁiort 2023



https://www.unicef-irc.org/article/958-the-first-1000-days-of-life-the-brains-window-of-opportunity.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-giving-every-child-the-best-start-in-life/health-matters-giving-every-child-the-best-start-in-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-life-course-approach-to-prevention/health-matters-prevention-a-life-course-approach
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-life-course-approach-to-prevention/health-matters-prevention-a-life-course-approach

5. Mental health through the life course

Children and Young People

As children and young people grow and develop, they face new experiences,
transitions, and challenges. Protective factors for children and young people to
have good mental wellbeing include:

+ Having freedom and time to play.

+ Eating a balanced diet and getting regular exercise.

+ Going to a school that looks after the wellbeing of its pupils.

+ Feeling loved, trusted, understood and safe.

There are risk factors that can cause mental health problems for children

and young people. These can include traumatic events and changes such as
moving home or changing school. Making the transition to adulthood can
also be difficult for young people and some may experiment with alcohol and
drugs, which can affect mental health.

Half of adult mental health problems start before the age of 14. This means that it is beneficial for
investment across the health and social care system to focus on younger children to prevent mental
health and emotional wellbeing issues that can have long-lasting impacts across an individual’s life.

Nationally, since 2017 mental health issues are increasing across England, so there is work
ongoing locally to monitor current patterns of mental health problems in children and young
people to ensure that services are planned, and appropriate support is put in place.

Every year we ask the young people of Derbyshire about their
views on a wide range of issues in the My Life, My View Survey.

my life, my view

B

What is the My Life, My View Survey?

N ‘_ '.T'- P — ;_'h-:. E-_- . -;ﬁi‘- < ), o -'.-. : :.—#_..

— 2 s s =3 - - —~—— = —

My Life, My View is the name of a confidential online survey of young people in Years 8-11
attending Derbyshire secondary schools. It asks young people about emotional health and
wellbeing and looks at their perceptions, beliefs and opinions on behaviours, relationships and
communities. The survey is developed with colleagues from Public Health Nursing, Education
Psychology, Education Improvement, Safeguarding, Schools, and with feedback from students.
13 of 45 mainstream secondary schools participated in 2022. The 2023 survey aims to reach more

children and young people and those who are elective home educated.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofr_igté'cgeéthgzal Report 2023


https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/explore-mental-health/a-z-topics/children-and-young-people
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/life_expectancy_and_mortality/Mortality&MorbidityMentalv1.2.pdf

5. Mental health through the life course
What did young people say about mental health and wellbeing?

+63% of Derbyshire students who participated in the survey responded that they are happy

with their life, however, there is a group of students with poor emotional wellbeing, with

important findings being:

+ 35% of students said they have been feeling depressed or hopeless at least sometimes in the
last two weeks

+ Worried young people may engage in risky coping strategies, with 11% saying they ‘hurt
myself’ ‘usually’ or ‘always’

+ 15% of students responded that feeling worried, sad or upset often makes it hard to do or
enjoy anything

+ 23% of students said they have been feeling lonely ‘often’ or ‘always’ in the last two weeks

+49% of Derbyshire students who responded to the survey stated that they find it easy to talk to
parents, carers or trusted adults (including teachers) about things that bother them.

+65% of students said that if they were concerned about a friend’s mental health, they would
know where to get help.

The findings of this survey help Public Health and partners in education and Children’s Services
to raise the profile of, and act on, specific issues surrounding mental health and young people in
Derbyshire. One approach to this currently ongoing in Derbyshire is the Whole School Approach
Project below.

What is a whole school approach and what does this involve?

The whole school approach programme commenced in Derbyshire in September 2021.

The Children’s Services Education Improvement Team and Derbyshire Schools are working
alongside Public Health as part of the project. A whole school approach involves all parts of the
school, including pupils, leadership team and teachers working together and being committed
to mental health and wellbeing. The commitment goes beyond learning and teaching in the
classroom by involving parents, carers and the wider community working together.

A whole school approach enables schools to:

. S
+ Develop peer support for children and young people, teachers and .w tay connected
school staff as well.

+ Undertake coaching and supervision.

« Improve transition for children between home, early years’ settings
and school.

+ Develop a clear action plan for improving wellbeing, focusing on
building on their strengths as a school.

+ Develop mental health and wellbeing pathways and policies.

» Attend regular network events to share good practice, support one and
other, and receive training. R T

« Support the Smilers programme, which targets primary school aged children.

In 2022, over 50 schools in Derbyshire engaged with the whole school approach. The
programme has received positive feedback from all schools involved and from other partners.

i

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicpeéfﬁguﬁgort 2023


https://derbyandderbyshireemotionalhealthandwellbeing.uk/professionals/whole-school-approach/children-young-people-mental-health-pathway
https://derbyandderbyshireemotionalhealthandwellbeing.uk/professionals/whole-school-approach/smilers

5. Mental health through the life course

Working-age adults

[ A focus on promoting good mental health and wellbeing early in the life

; course does not mean that support and actions later in the life course are not
needed. Adulthood is an important time for building resilience for later life
but also a time when mental health problems are common. One in four adults
experience at least one diagnosable mental health problem in any given year,
including depression and anxiety.

Protective factors like reducing stress at work, long-term unemployment
and social isolation can contribute to improved mental wellbeing in
working-age adults.

There are many examples of promoting mental health and wellbeing into
adulthood in Derbyshire. Below are two case studies focussing on men’s
emotional wellbeing and those working in the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise
sector (VCSE).

Let’s chat to James about Mentell:

James is the Public Health Lead for Mental Health and has been part of a team that
has partnered with Mentell:

James, can you tell us about Mentell and why it is important?

We know research suggests men are less likely to discuss or seek help for their mental health
problems. Studies also show the valuable role that men can have by providing informal support
to each other with emotional wellbeing. The Public Health team is working on behalf of Joined
Up Care Derbyshire with Mentell to provide emotional wellbeing support through a network of
peer support groups for men.

Groups are open to all men aged 18 and over
living in Derbyshire wanting to make positive
changes to their emotional wellbeing in a peer
support group environment. The groups, known
as circles, are based on sharing feelings and
thoughts, however small. Mentell also raises
awareness and engages with communities
through campaigns such as ‘Turn Your Bar/
Business/Borough Blue’ which encourages
businesses to raise awareness of men’s mental
health and to signpost staff and customers

to Mentell.

How many people have been involved so far?

It has been really successful and over 300 men
have attended circles, and 500 referral partners
have engaged. Finally, over 650 businesses have
engaged in the Turn Your Bar/Business/Borough
Blue campaign.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofpt&@eéth gﬂal Report 2023



https://www.england.nhs.uk/mental-health/adults/
https://www.mentell.org.uk/ 

5. Mental health through the life course

Mel is a Public Health Wellbeing Counsellor who works closely with voluntary sector
partners in relation to mental health:

Can you tell us a bit about what you do to support mental health and wellbeing?

The voluntary sector, known as the VCSE, is a key partner in helping people to live fulfilling
lives and maintain their health and wellbeing. The VCSE has a strong understanding of
community needs and reaches the most vulnerable in society. Due to current climates,
demands for many services have increased and the complexity of issues has increased, which
has impacted the mental health and wellbeing of some volunteers and employees from the
sector. Some of these organisations do not have employee assistance programmes or mental
health support offers so we wanted to fill that gap by doing three things.

Firstly, providing health and wellbeing support for all employees and volunteers from the
VCSE sector, including a one-to-one wellbeing support service. Secondly, promoting ways that
employees and volunteers can improve their health and wellbeing. Finally, we are connecting
VCSE organisations together for peer-to-peer support.

What difference has this support made?

In a one-year period from November 2021 to October 2022

+ 128 individual VCSE employees and volunteers accessed the wellbeing service.
+ 14 bespoke wellbeing groups were delivered.

+ 84 group sessions were delivered.

+ 200 individuals and 50 VCSE organisations registered for wellbeing support.

There has been lots of positive feedback from the programme. There were examples where
people had reached a point where they intended to leave their jobs, but after they accessed
the wellbeing intervention they did not.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicﬁga@uﬁsort 2023




5. Mental health through the life course

Older people: Ageing well and long-term conditions

Our physical health and mental health are closely connected, and poor physical
health can lead to or worsen mental health. As people get older and they are
more likely to have long-term health conditions like cardiovascular (heart)
disease and diabetes. For example, in England 58% of people over 60 have one or
more long-term physical conditions, compared to 14% of people under 40.

More than two in three people with a heart condition report that their emotional
health suffers because of their physical condition, with anxiety being the most
common symptom. Also, mental health symptoms can then make dealing with
the physical symptoms more difficult.

This does not mean mental ill health is inevitable later in the life course though
as physical conditions become more common. There are ways in which mental health can be
promoted and support is available.

As people age, the connections with others including family, friends and the wider community
is important for mental health and wellbeing and can increase feelings of happiness and self-
worth. Time Swap allows older people with different skills, knowledge, and experience to
support their wider community. The case study below explores Time Swap Derbyshire.

Time Swap Derbyshire

Time Swap is a time banking programme. This is where people swap their time to help
others and in return receive help for themselves or donate their time. The programme
started in Derbyshire in 2015 and is part of the Timebanking UK scheme.

Since 2015 Time Swap has helped hundreds of Derbyshire residents to share their skills and
talents and almost 17,000 hours of time has been swapped. Derbyshire Time Swap helps bring
individuals and groups together, it helps people to feel more connected to their community and
can enrich lives with meaning and purpose. This can promote or support good mental health.

An example of Time Swap supporting an older person’s mental wellbeing can be shown
in the following case study:

A resident wanted to get her garden ready for spring
and was struggling to manage on her own. A very kind
gentleman, also part of Time Swap, offered to help and
brought along his lawn mower and other gardening
tools to complete the job. A couple of hours later the
garden was transformed! Now that the garden is more
manageable for the Time Swap member, she will be
able to go out more and enjoy the fresh air and see the
bulbs and plants come through in spring.

Stuart who manages the project in South Derbyshire
& Erewash commented: “This is a perfect example of
the difference Time Swap can make to individuals and
communities in our local area and has a real impact
on reducing loneliness and supporting our Time Swap
members to improve their health and wellbeing”.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofﬁt&@eéthggal Report 2023



https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/explore-mental-health/a-z-topics/long-term-physical-conditions-and-mental-health#:~:text=More%20than%2015%20million%20people,but%20anyone%20can%20be%20affected.
https://www.bhf.org.uk/informationsupport/heart-matters-magazine/wellbeing/mental-health/mental-health-survey
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/explore-mental-health/a-z-topics/long-term-physical-conditions-and-mental-health
https://timebanking.org/

The impact on mental health from Covid-19

The impacts of the pandemic continue to be seen across communities in Derbyshire. One of the
legacy factors of the pandemic includes a lasting impact on mental health and wellbeing for some
people. During the pandemic many people faced long periods of loneliness and isolation and

for some it has been challenging to re-establish networks of support as society re-opened. The
lockdowns and disruption to education throughout the various Covid-19 waves is likely to have
impacted people’s mental wellbeing, the evidence for this impact is developing (as it can take a
while from the event for issues to be identified in research and data). Early indications are that
some children, young people, and adults experienced poorer mental wellbeing and this will be
explored in more detail in the following section. The evidence for impact across the life course is
also developing. Some examples that many people in Derbyshire have experienced include:

>

Medium term impacts Long term impacts

+ Anxiety over outbreak and + Post traumatic stress + Grief caused by bereavement
possible illness « Depression caused by « Reoccurrence of previous

+ Loneliness due to isolation loneliness and isolation mental health problems
and social distancing » Increased risk of suicide and

+ Developmental and

» Stress caused by adjusting self-harm behavioural issues in
to new routines, fi.nancial. « Relationship breakdown children and young people
2109 ETEIDY e ey from isolation or social

» Depression caused by lack distancing at key milestones

of activity, loss of normal
routine, increased caring
responsibilities

+ Development of mental
health disorders as a result
of the stress.

Source: Derbyshire Observatory.

The Public Health Knowledge and Intelligence Team have estimated that an extra 80,000
people in Derbyshire would require support for mental health. This estimate shows the scale
of need for people who may require services, support, and interventions to address their
mental health issues.

The following sections provide an overview of the evidence for the impacts of Covid-19 on
mental health.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Pu blicpeéfﬁ\@u§7ort 2023

g


https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/adult_lifestyles/COVID Population Restoration and Recovery_v1.8 (Final 01072021)_Observatory.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/adult_lifestyles/COVID Population Restoration and Recovery_v1.8 (Final 01072021)_Observatory.pdf

6. The impact on mental health from Covid-19

Impact on children and young people

During and after the pandemic there have been changes to the mental health and wellbeing of
children and young people. The Mental Health and Young People Survey looked at the mental
health of children and young people in England from February and March 2021. The results from
this survey were compared to the previous survey that took place in 2017 with over 3,600 of the
same children and young people. Key findings included:

+ The proportion of children and young people with possible eating problems increased since
2017. This went from 6.7% to 13.0% in 11- to 16-year-olds, and from 44.6% to 58.2% in 17- to
19-year-olds.

« Rates of probable mental disorders increased since 2017. In 6- to 16-year-olds there was an
increase from one in nine (11.6%) to one in six (17.4%), and in 17- to 19-year-olds from one in ten
(10.1%) to one in six (17.4%). Rates in both age groups remained similar between 2020 and 2021.

Impact on adults

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) measures wellbeing of people in the United Kingdom.
The graphs below show how measures of wellbeing significantly worsened at the start of the
pandemic. By the third quarter of 2021 these had moved back towards 2019 levels although
levels of self-reported anxiety remained higher than before the start of the pandemic in part
due to higher anxiety among women. This can be seen in the graph below.

Graph 1: Personal wellbeing in the UK January 2019 to September 2021

— Males Females
05% credible interval
Life Satisfaction Worthwhile
2.0 8.0
7.8 7.8
7.6 7.6/\-__\/
7.4 7.4
7.2 Tl
7.0 7.0
Q12019 Q42019 Q32020 Q2 2021 Q12019 Q42019 Q3 2020 Q2 2021
Happiness Anxiety
2.0
3.6
7.8
3.4
7.6 3
7.4/\_——/\-—/ 3.0
7.2 2.8
7.0 2.6
Q12019 Q42019 Q32020 Q2 2021 Q12019 Q42019 Q32020 Q2 2021

Source: Office for National Statistics

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofpk&@e@hggal Report 2023

i


https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2021-follow-up-to-the-2017-survey#highlights
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/bulletins/personalwellbeingintheukquarterly/april2011toseptember2021#:~:text=In%20the%20latest%20period%2C%20well,(July%20to%20Sept)%202021.
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/conditionsanddiseases/articles/coronaviruscovid19latestinsights/wellbeing

6. The impact on mental health from Covid-19

As more data and information becomes available it’s likely more impacts from worry, anxiety
and social isolation will be seen. The risks of social isolation are high and have been estimated
to be as damaging to health as smoking 15 cigarettes a day. Research also shows that loneliness
is associated with a greater risk of inactivity, heart disease, stroke, depression, low self-esteem,
sleep problems and dementia.

As a result of these emerging issues Public Health recognised the potential short, medium,

and long-term impact of the pandemic. Public Health have invested additional resources to
provide practical help, support, and advice to residents. A particular area of focus is social
connectedness as the pandemic changed the way in which everyone was able to interact with
each other for long periods of time. The following case studies described how Public Health has
brought people together. Connect Derbyshire was created to support people to feel less lonely
and isolated, Let’s Get Creative brought people together to allow social bonds to form and
Swanwick Men’s Shed helps to make friends while making things.

Connect Derbyshire has involved creating local social connectedness groups across
Derbyshire, which provided a tailored approach to supporting social isolation. The groups
are hosted by local voluntary sector organisations.

Different partners and members of the community have come together through the work of
these groups to understand what makes residents feel isolated and identify what can make
people feel more connected. The groups have highlighted issues including digital poverty,
fear of crime, cost-of-living pressures, a lack of friends and poor transport connections. Each
area has developed an action plan to focus on key issues for local communities and put
practical preventative solutions in place. The groups have played a key part in recovery from
the pandemic. For example, some groups have set up befriending support, food banks and
general community groups to re-engage people after the pandemic.

In addition to local groups a county-wide ‘Connect Derbyshire Forum’, led by Public Health,
helps to share good practice, and look at what works well and what needs to be improved.
The Forum organised a conference in 2022, which was attended by 130 partners, to highlight
the impact of loneliness and isolation and showcase local action to tackle the issue. 100%

of participants said that their
understanding of loneliness
and isolation had improved as a
result of the conference and all
participants reported they felt
motivated and more confident
in trying to reduce loneliness
and isolation.

™

Connect Derbyshire has
resulted in a range of activities
which enables people within
communities in Derbyshire to
feel better connected and
well supported.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicpea(ﬁ@uﬁgort 2023

i


https://academic.oup.com/ppar/article/27/4/127/4782506
https://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/health-impact/
https://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/health-impact/

6. The impact on mental health from Covid-19

Let’s Get Creative

Public Health has supported a programme for
young people with special educational needs and
_ disabilities to come together and develop digital
1| skills. The project provided the space for young
people to come together and develop social
connections after they had experienced increased
isolation during the lockdowns.

In summer 2021 an event was held in Chesterfield to
recognise the achievements of the ‘Let’s Get Creative’
team. The team are an exceptional group of young people who are contributing towards an
app promoting local walks in the Chesterfield area.

The app can be accessed by using the QR code below and enables you to link in with a local walk
in the Chesterfield area. Taking time to be outside and a break from our busy days will
support our mental health and wellbeing, and the app makes this easy to plan and do.

The group was facilitated by staff from Derbyshire Education Business Partnership
(DEBP) in collaboration with Kakou CIC, and supported by Chesterfield College’s
Digital, Media & Graphics department.

Swanwick Men’s Shed

Tucked away on a farm on the outskirts of Swanwick in Amber Valley the Men’s Shed
provides a safe, friendly place to meet and join in a variety of projects ranging from
building garden benches to making picture frames and reviving old furniture. Since its
establishment it has won both regional and national awards.

The shed is a vibrant community space and is providing a lifeline to local men, and women, who
would otherwise be socially isolated or experiencing poor mental health. Charles Parkes helped
to set up the Men’s Shed and explains: “The original idea was to deal with isolation for older
males. A lot of men who've finished work for whatever reason - whether they’ve retired, been
made redundant or finished due to ill health - don’t have the social network that their wives
would probably have through schools, playgroups, Women'’s Institute and all sorts of things”.

“We’ve had a few people move into the area and then become widowed so they’re in a new
place with no social contact at all. They have found new friends and a family in the shed. They
enjoy coming and helping out, making items for their grandchildren or cooking the sausages
on a Saturday. We get new members to buddy up with a shedder on a project. Itis good to see
them smiling and enjoying the banter. It’s something to do and keeps them physically fit and
mentally active”.

“We support each other. We’ve got two or three at the moment who'’ve got health problems
within their family and we’re rallying around speaking and supporting each other. We closed
over Christmas, and we kept in contact with people who needed contact and help”.

To summarise the impact of the project T = -
Charles said:

“| get a lot of satisfaction out of it in terms of
what we’ve achieved. When you hear their
stories it’s great to see the effects it’s had on
other people being there. We’ve got people
there who would readily openly admit it’s
saved their lives.”

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofpbé:@eéthﬁbal Report 2023




I8 The impact of cost-of-living pressures
on mental health

As the main Covid-19 pandemic restrictions eased, the cost-of-living in the UK increased sharply
during 2021 and 2022. The costs of petrol, food, utility bills and housing increased rapidly. These
pressures, combined with the longer-term impacts of the pandemic represent a challenge

to mental health and wellbeing. A further challenge is that the pandemic may have reduced
resilience, or how individuals adapt to difficult situations.

The graph below shows how key events impacted the cost-of-living. It uses the Consumer Price
Index, which is a key indicator when considering the cost-of-living for people in the UK. The
graph also shows how several big global and national events have linked together. Public Health
recognises that the cost-of-living pressures can impact our mental health and wellbeing as many
people struggle to adapt to these increased costs.

Graph 2: Consumer Price Index January 2020 to January 2023

Under pressure.... Energy Price Guarantee

(typical use £2,500 per yea
Bank rate
10.0 sm=CPH ANNUAL RATE 00: ALL TEMS 2015=100

wereased to 4%
Price cap increase (typical Increased to 47

T
i
!
9.0 use €1,971 per year) :
] ]
] ]
8.0 . N I i
Russia invaaes UKraine 4 H
] ]
7.0 Price cap increase (typical i ' '
ol 1 I e t Fuel poverty:
) use £1 277 per year) | ! : .
g p : i . !\ spending 10% of
) i | ] 3
i d i i 11 net income on fuel
5.0 ) ] v ! [l =
COovID ! ! 10 : -
AWMrevi a ! | t | .
1..‘}.. .1{1 , t ' ¢ Despite
a0 | ) | s i | additional
1 1 ] | - ' ]
55 ! | I : : ! ; support
: . : ! H ! : measures, an
] I s J
T i | { ! i { estimated
i i | | | i i
w At : = ‘ ' 7 million
R T S S S O 8 S oD 2 A O &8 G K DD RN e O & & &R
N‘)\f‘(_\érg“\. RO Q\g@‘\)\»\‘cﬁpﬁ@@oﬂ' Q\\o Qox‘»\\)‘_‘.\wv‘g{)s & .:})‘i\@‘\"_\)‘i\ﬂv & O N’gvﬂ\;'ﬂ@‘ S S {;@‘1'\\,'.\& g x\\o o ‘5\,&*
FEIFE LTI EEEFEF PP TSP EEET LTSI FITES | households
'CPI (Consumer Prices Index) is the current headline measure of price inflation and is used by the across the UK will
government in its price Inflation target. CPIH |s an alternative measure of CP| that incorporates owner be in fuel poverty

occupiers' housing costs (OOH) including Council Tax. this winter

Source: Derbyshire County Council, Public Health Knowledge and Intelligence Team

These cost-of-living pressures, as shown in the graph above, have impacted on millions of
households across the UK and in Derbyshire, affecting peoples’ ability to:

+ buy enough food. « save money for the future and manage bills.
+ heat their homes. s increase their risk of having problems
« access support to live healthier lives. with debt.

These issues can all have significant negative impacts on mental health and wellbeing. Spikes
in mental health distress have been seen in previous periods of economic stress. As data
emerges there may be similar patterns of mental health distress as a result of the current
cost-of-living pressures.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Pu blicﬁé’fa@uzﬂfiort 2023



https://www.health.org.uk/publications/long-reads/the-continuing-impact-of-covid-19-on-health-and-inequalities?gclid=Cj0KCQiAx6ugBhCcARIsAGNmMbgrErTpwuCjed3AtWGqe9fLdJG74Rn_NBxvIZncKm131TrBlDCPX3kaAvIrEALw_wcB
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/long-reads/the-continuing-impact-of-covid-19-on-health-and-inequalities?gclid=Cj0KCQiAx6ugBhCcARIsAGNmMbgrErTpwuCjed3AtWGqe9fLdJG74Rn_NBxvIZncKm131TrBlDCPX3kaAvIrEALw_wcB
https://www.rsph.org.uk/about-us/news/rsph-s-new-report-shows-health-will-be-the-price-we-will-pay-for-the-cost-of-living-crisis.html
https://www.rsph.org.uk/about-us/news/rsph-s-new-report-shows-health-will-be-the-price-we-will-pay-for-the-cost-of-living-crisis.html
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/uk_poverty_2023_-_the_essential_guide_to_understanding_poverty_in_the_uk_0_0.pdf
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/24925987/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/24925987/

7. The impact of cost-of-living pressures on mental health

Impact on mental health and wellbeing

National surveys that have asked a cross section of the population about their mental health
during the current cost-of-living pressures have shown a negative impact on their mental health
and wellbeing. For example, one survey conducted from December 2022 to January 2023 by
the mental health charity Mind showed that 78% of people surveyed said that cost-of-living

pressures was impacting their mental health.

Other research carried out by the Office for National Statistics and Money and Mental Health

Policy Institute in 2022 found a link between the current cost-of-living pressures and levels of
mental health distress. The graphic below shows some of the key statistics from this research:

Figure 3. Impacts of cost-of-living on mental health

The impact of cost of living

on mental heatlh

3in 4 people
have had to change how they live in
recent months. For example, cutting back

(ol ladal ladal

3in 4 people
have felt stressed due to the current
cost of living.

on energy use or other essential spending.

— 1in 2 people
have felt anxious, depressed, or unable to
cope due to the cost of living.
| —
= 1in 6 peopl
= In eopile

= 1in 25 people
have made an attempt to end their
own life as a result of the rise in the
cost of living.

References: https:/www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthand-
socialcare/mentalhealth/articles/costoflivinganddepressioninadultsgreatbritain/29septemberto23october2022

https:/www.moneyandmentalhealth.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/Cost-of-living-crisis-policy-note-1.pdf

have felt suicidal due to the cost of living.

The longer-term impacts of
pressures on our finances
and struggling to make ends
meet can cause people to be
living in poverty and could
result in chronic stress,
depression or anxiety.

Chronic stress is also linked

with an increased risk of
physical health problems such
as circulatory (heart) system
problems and increased fatigue.
On top of this, poverty can result
in difficulties in managing long-
term conditions, such as meeting
the cost of prescription charges.

The Mental Health Foundation
suggests the effects of the
cost-of-living pressures on
public mental health could

be on a scale similar to the
Covid-19 pandemic.

Public Health are concerned
about these impacts on mental
health, so have responded

by increasing support to

our residents. In Derbyshire
there are existing services

and advice to help residents
with their finances, energy

efficiency, sourcing good quality food, family support and many more aspects of life relating
to the current cost-of-living pressures, and Public Health have enhanced these. Public Health,
alongside partners, have created information for the public, supported people with money for
emergencies with the Derbyshire Discretionary Fund (DDF), helped people claim benefits that
they are entitled to with the Welfare Rights Service and set up warm and welcoming spaces.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofpbé:@eéchzlzal Report 2023

i


https://www.mind.org.uk/news-campaigns/news/almost-20-million-adults-never-speak-about-mental-health-and-it-s-set-to-get-worse-due-to-the-cost-of-living-crisis/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/worriesabouttherisingcostsoflivinggreatbritain/apriltomay2022
https://www.moneyandmentalhealth.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Bombarded_policy-note.pdf
https://www.moneyandmentalhealth.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Bombarded_policy-note.pdf
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3341916/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3341916/
https://www.bma.org.uk/media/2084/health-at-a-price-2017.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/our-work/policy-and-advocacy/mental-health-and-cost-of-living-crisis-report

7. The impact of cost-of-living pressures on mental health

The Derbyshire Discretionary Fund (DDF) helps provide grants or emergency cash payments
for those in urgent need of financial help following a crisis. The fund aims to support people
in such situations to continue to live independently or cope with exceptional pressure when
they have no other source of funding. The fund can also put individuals in touch with other
services and support to help make sure it is less likely to happen again.

In 2022 the DDF made;

+ 31,003 Emergency Cash Payments for food and
heating - over twice as many as in 2021.

« 775 awards for Exceptional Pressure Grants
providing essential furniture, white goods, and
other items for residents in need.

88% of applicants who received funds felt that the
award helped them to feel less stressed.

One applicant was supported with rent in advance,
white goods, furniture and help with carpets after
being resettled from emergency accommodation
following domestic abuse. They explained: “I’'m so
pleased that DDF could help as | don’t know what

| would have done without you as it was a very
stressful time for all the family. I’d like to thank
everyone in DDF for their support and help. | feel
like | can breathe again.”

Welfare Rights Service

The Welfare Rights Service provides benefits
information and advice to individuals and families
across Derbyshire. For many the benefits system
is complex and overwhelming and can worsen
existing mental health difficulties, which can
result in financial worries. The team provides an
advice line, casework support for adult social care
clients, and representation at benefit appeals.

In 2022 the service responded to over 19,000
requests for support and helped residents to
access a confirmed £26.2 million of additional
benefits income. Here are some quotes from
Derbyshire residents about their experiences:

« “The advisor was extremely friendly and helpful.
They stopped my anxiety levels from increasing. |
was having suicidal thoughts as | had no money”

« “The Advisor provided confidence to continue with
the appeal - changed day to day life for the better”

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Pu blicpega\@u%gort 2023




7. The impact of cost-of-living pressures on mental health

There is also targeted support for those households with someone who is living with cancer or
a terminalillness, and a project to improve Pension Credit uptake for those who are missing
out. The service supports clients and their families by ensuring they have their full entitlement
and can navigate the benefit system.

Gwen Sandford from the Welfare Rights service team describes the support one client received:
“The service helped a father with his son’s Disability Living Allowance claim. Both father and
son had chronic anxiety problems and found completing the form for the claim challenging
and overwhelming. They were supported through the process by the Welfare Rights Service
(including looking at a range of other benefit problems) with advice tailored to their needs. The
Welfare Rights Service removed barriers and empowered this gentleman - this helped improve
mental health and the family’s ability and resilience to respond to issues in the future”.

Let’s chat to Sam about Warm Spaces in Derbyshire

Sam works in Public Health and has been part of a team
that has grant funded Warm Spaces across the county.

Tell us more about the project and what it aimed
to achieve?

A Warm Spaces fund was launched in Derbyshire to
support organisations to provide a warm refuge for
residents who might be struggling to heat their homes
over last winter. VCSE organisations in Derbyshire
could apply for a grant towards the cost of opening up
community venues or to extend their opening hours

during the colder months. Please come

in
Yourself com 2id

f
What difference did this make to people in Ortable,

Derbyshire, especially in relation to their
mental health?

Venues offered a heated space, provided seating,
offered refreshments such as a warm drink, and were
free of charge. People visiting these warm spaces are
offered information to help them with cost-of-living

Find Ut more

support, as well as advice on looking after their . by visiting
mental health and wellbeing. '

Staff and volunteers at organisations and groups ‘?ﬁfﬁ-*é;t',ﬁf
running Warm Spaces in Derbyshire are also
supported with their own mental health. Public Health developed a short

film to provide advice to help people look after their wellbeing, and Derbyshire Voluntary

Action developed and circulated a Mental Health Support Pack. Support is also offered by
a Public Health Wellbeing Counsellor who could provide more specialist help and advice.

People valued the social connections of a warm space which can help with mental health

and wellbeing.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofplﬁ@eéth Z:ﬂal Report 2023

i



Population mental health

This report has described different ways of providing individual support for mental health and
wellbeing. However, there are other ways to support Derbyshire residents. One of these is by
taking a population health approach to mental health.

A population health approach looks at promoting mental health across the whole population

by looking at the needs of different groups of people. For some groups of people, this may be
support that enables them to recover and thrive whilst they are experiencing a mentalillness.
For other groups who are not currently experiencing mental health problems, this may be

about promoting mental health to prevent mental illness from developing. A population health
approach aims to improve health across the entire population and to reduce health inequalities.

Health inequalities are ultimately about differences in the status of people’s health. The term is
also used to refer to other differences that can contribute to a person’s health status such as:

+ Access to care (e.g., availability of treatments)
+ Quality and experience of care (e.g., levels of patient satisfaction)
« Behavioural risks to health (e.g., smoking rates)

« Wider determinants of health: the environmental, economic, and social conditions in which
people live (e.g., quality of housing).

There are inequalities in mental health. Some groups of people are more likely to have
poor mental health and less likely to get the support that they need. For example:

People in urban Young women Black and Asian
ﬂﬂﬂ areas have better experience higher males have much
access to services rates of reported higher rates of
self-harm psychotic disorder

Those with poorer mental health may also have poorer physical health problems
and social issues. For example:

People with People with Adults with
severe mental mentalillness depression are
illness die 15-20 are less likely to twice as likely
years earlier than be employed to smoke as
people without adults without
severe mental depression
illness

A population health approach can be used to help reduce these health inequalities by
responding to the mental health needs of different groups of people.

What work is ongoing in Derbyshire?

In 2023 Public Health started a Health Needs Assessment (HNA) or a deep dive into the data,
experiences, and services for deaf people, and for black people. These two groups are impacted by
mental health illness in different ways than other people in the population. Public Health want to
understand why this is and how changes can be made to services to reduce this difference.

i

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicpeé'.(ﬁ@uzﬁgort 2023


https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/what-are-health-inequalities

8. Population mental health

Core20PLUSS

The NHS has developed the Core20PLUS 5 approach, which aims to reduce inequalities in
healthcare across the population. The infographic below identifies how we reduce inequalities
in access, experience and outcomes in health services.

Figure 4. Core20PLUS 5 approach infographic

REDUCING HEALTHCARE INEQUALITIES INHS
CONE20 The Core20PLUSS approach is designed to support Integrated Care Systems 1o G PLUS
The-most deprived 20% of drive targeted action in healthcare inequalities improvement ICS-chosen population grodps

experiencing poorer-than-average
health access, experience and/or
olitcomes, who may not be captured
within the Core20 alone and would
beneit from a tailored healthcare
approach e.g. inclusion health groups

the national population as
identified by the Index of
Multiple Deprivation

Target population

Key clinical areas of health ine

T e — [

:  CESSATION

: ifi i :
MATERNITY SEVERE MENTAL CHRONIC RESPIRATORY EARLY CANCER HYPERFENSION ! Tﬁlsﬁﬁ“ﬂ :
nsuring cantinuity W caseanbinG : :
-of care for women

ILLNESS {SMI) DISEASE DIAGNOSIS % i esiitnal areas
ensuring annual health achear focus on Chronic 75% of cases 1 RSOl ;
management and lipid

froo Black, Aclan checks for BO% of those Chstructive Pulmonary. diagnosed at stage 1 =

and rminority ethic Iiving veith SMI fbringing Disease {COPD), driving up or 2 by 2028 CHUmal e R IR
comimainities and SMIin line with the succass uptake-of Cavid, Flu and

from the most seen in Learming Disabilities) Preumonia vaccines to

deprived groups reduce infective

exacerhations and emergency
hospital admissions dug to
those exacerbations

Source: NHS England

The CORE20PLUSS approach focusses on specific population groups who are known to
experience health inequalities. These include:

« The most deprived 20% of the national population, identified by the national Index of
Multiple Deprivation (IMD).

« Population groups, decided locally that are experiencing poorer-than-average health access,
experience and/or outcomes. This could include ethnic minority communities, people with a
learning disability and autistic people, and people with multiple health conditions.

The NHS has identified five clinical areas of attention for this approach. One of these is specifically
related to mental illness and focuses on annual health checks for 60% of those living with Severe
Mental Illness (SMI). This is important as people experiencing SMI are more likely to have poor
physical health and live on average 15 to 20 vears less than the general population. Other areas of
focus are maternity, respiratory disease, cancer, and hypertension (high blood pressure).

Public Health will continue to work with NHS partners in Derbyshire to reduce inequalities
in healthcare for those experiencing mental and physical illness by working through the
CORE20PLUSS approach.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofpbé:@eéthﬁgal Report 2023



https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.england.nhs.uk/south/our-work/mental-health/physical-health-smi/#:~:text=People%20with%20severe%20mental%20illness,appropriate%2C%20timely%20screening%20and%20treatment

Working together to support people with their
mental health and wellbeing across Derbyshire

This report has discussed how Public Health has taken an individual approach and a population
approach to mental health and wellbeing. Public Health teams can’t do this on their own and
need to work with lots of different organisations so more people can be helped and supported
more of the time.

Let’s chat with James, the Public Health Lead again.

James, can you tell us how we can all work together to support people with
their mental health and wellbeing?

We all have mental health, we all have experience of mental health in ourselves and others and
we can all play a positive role. We are all mental health aware which is an important yet simple
skill. Inherently we all have kindness and empathy, and we all have a built-in desire to help
others. We want to help people develop this skill and desire to help each other.

How can we become more aware of other’s mental health?

Understanding emotional distress is a key starting point. Emotional distress can manifestin
different ways. In children it may be a tantrum, in teenagers it may be self-isolation and in adults
it could be a risky behaviour. To think beyond the behaviour, to realise that someone is struggling
and to support with compassion in a non-judgmental way is something that we all can do.

We can also create a culture and an environment at home, at school, in the workplace, in other
settings and on social media that is one where people feel comfortable talking about mental
health. We can develop our awareness and our skills to be confident to ask people about how
they are feeling and the listening skills to truly hear what people are saying.

There is a lot of information, support and services out there, but sometimes the simplest
interactions can make all the difference or be the first step to seeking help. Don’t underestimate
the difference that you could make. Mental health is everyone’s business!

So, everybody can have a part in supporting others with their mental health and creating an
environment that promotes mental wellbeing to improve the lives of individuals and communities.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicﬁga@u%?ort 2023




9. Working together to support people with their mental health and wellbeing across Derbyshire

The ‘Let’s Chat’ campaign in Derbyshire is a method of improving our mental health
awareness and supporting others. It launched in 2022 to start conversations about mental
health, helping people connect and reducing isolation. Luke, from the Public Health team
talks about this project below.

Let’s Chat to Luke about getting people talking

Luke, can you tell us about the Let’s Chat project?

Derbyshire County Council have put up 700 Let’s Chat bench signs across the county, aiming
to get people talking about mental health and making connections with others in the
community. The signs also give information via a QR code and link to mental health support.

The signs are on benches in parks, town centres, community venues and other locations such
as Chatsworth, Hardwick Hall, and the Chesterfield Royal Hospital. A map of locations can be
found here.

Resources were also developed for the winter
months including posters, window stickers
and table cards. Over 120 organisations have
signed up for indoor resources and over 3000
resources have been sent out to Derbyshire
organisations. In 2023 bench signs will

be produced to reflect Joined Up Care
Derbyshire branding and will include Derby
City. Smaller gate post and signpost signs are
also in development.

Local photographer Tony Fisher supported
the campaign by taking pictures of the
benches being used and had conversations
with people across Derbyshire about their
emotional health and wellbeing. Some of
these have been printed on canvas to exhibit
around the county.

What difference has this project made to the mental health of Derbyshire residents?

From April 2022 to January 2023 the Let’s Chat online map had 11,500 views and the
Tackling Loneliness webpage had 1,500 page views.

There has been good feedback from the public and employees about how they are helping
people to have conversations about mental health and wellbeing. One resident explains:

“l was out taking photos of the signs and a member of the public came and spoke to me, we
got chatting and she said they were such a good idea, she never had the confidence to ask for
help as she’s really struggling, she rarely leaves the house unless to drop her child off at school
or nip to the corner shop. As she was walking back from the school drop off she saw the sign,
scanned the QR code and found the contact details for the Derbyshire mental health support
line number. She rang them that afternoon after building up the confidence and found it really
helped speaking to someone and getting support from them and signposting to other services”.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofpt&@eéthﬂ:gal Report 2023

i


https://www.google.com/maps/d/u/0/viewer?mid=1SllBphF97tIAmgpMeH7UrKF7f9O0ZCOy&ll=53.25795932610625%2C-1.6687443567644422&z=11

9. Working together to support people with their mental health and wellbeing across Derbyshire

There are other ways Public Health is working in partnership with the goal of making mental
health and wellbeing everyone’s business. These include:

+Increasing awareness and reducing stigma, for example through campaigns.

+Helping people to become more confident and competent, for example through training.

+ Providing information such as via websites about services and support.

Increasing awareness and reducing stigma

Not everyone will understand mental health problems and some people may have misconceptions
or negative attitudes towards people experiencing mental health problems. It isimportant to
reduce this stigma. Ways to do this include raising awareness about mental health problems

and how they can affect anyone, individuals speaking out and sharing their stories, and social
marketing campaigns.

One way this has been done across Derbyshire is by using football to connect with people and
raise awareness about mental health.

Football is England’s national game, and it has a powerful impact on many people’s lives.

As well as the fans who attend matches every week and those who watch it on television, there
are also those who talk about it in daily conversations and follow it though different formats
including via social media. Football has the power to reach and connect with people especially
men and boys. Evidence shows that more men die of suicide than women with three quarters of
deaths by suicide being men. As football is so important to many men it’s a great way to start a
conversation around mental health and wellbeing.

In recent years Public Health has partnered with Chesterfield FC, Alfreton Town FC, Belper
Town FC, Matlock Town FC and Sheffield FC to host World Suicide Prevention Day events at
their matches. On this day volunteers have handed out club-specific leaflets, raised awareness
and engaged in conversations with fans. Awareness has also been raised with activity on social
media. Derby County FC have provided support for the suicide prevention agenda using films
and social media messaging.

How many people in Derbyshire do these events reach?

The World Suicide Prevention Day events directly reach over 10,000 fans at matches each year
and thousands more via social media and communications.

Building on this success, Derbyshire
County Council are piloting a project
with Chesterfield Football Club by
using the club’s stadium facilities
and media channels to share crucial
messages relating to mental health.
The messaging will reach several
thousand fans on match days or at
other events and those who connect
on social media.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicpeé'.(ﬁ@u%gort 2023

i


https://www.psychiatry.org/patients-families/stigma-and-discrimination
https://www.psychiatry.org/patients-families/stigma-and-discrimination

9. Working together to support people with their mental health and wellbeing across Derbyshire

Helping people to become more confident and competent

As well as reducing stigma and raising awareness, helping people to become more confident
and competent supporting others with their mental health is an important approach. This can
be achieved by activities such as training. For example, in the work environment this can build

resilience amongst colleagues and increase recognition of when others need support. Mike
works in the mental health and suicide prevention team and describes a workforce training
approach in Derbyshire.

Mike, tell us about the workforce training approach in Derbyshire?

The project has been running since 2015 and aims to upskill volunteers and paid staff so
they can raise awareness about mental health and deliver messages about positive mental
wellbeing at work.

The training reflects that mental health is everyone’s business so anyone can take part. Training
is adapted to suit the needs of the workforce. There are free places for the VCSE and public
sector organisations. There is ongoing support with a regular newsletter that provides practical
tips and information on events, resources, campaigns and other mental health news.

A key part of this project is the nationally promoted MHFA training. This two-day course provides
attendees with a deeper knowledge and practical skills to identify and support people. A
community mental health first aider network has been set up to provide ongoing peer support.

What difference has this approach made to people in Derbyshire, especially in
relation to mental health?

In 2022 more than a hundred mental health courses were delivered with over 500 hours of live
training time. These mental health courses were attended by over 1,000 participants from over
300 different Derbyshire organisations and 350 individuals gained the nationally recognised
MHFA training qualification.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofpbé:@eéthgbal Report 2023

i


https://blog.redcrossfirstaidtraining.co.uk/7-advantages-of-mental-health-training-that-will-help-deliver-value

9. Working together to support people with their mental health and wellbeing across Derbyshire

Providing information

Having access to information about support and services is another key part to ensuring
mental health is everyone’s business. This allows everyone, whether they are seeking support
for themselves, a friend, a colleague, or a client to access advice and resources. Public Health
have worked in partnership to create a website as a single point of access for residents and
professionals to find this information and support.

Log on for more information, advice and support

‘et Derby & Derbyshire

“* Emotional Health & Wellbeing Joined Up Care

Derbyshire

This emotional health and wellbeing signposting website for Derby and Derbyshire contains local and national links and resources updated regularly. Please use the search bar with key words or
click and scroll down the sections. For assisted access, use the Accessibility button above.

4 Information Neurodiversity
Adult Child / Young Person Campaigns (Autism, ADHD etc)
Parent / Carer Professional Suicide Preventlon & Supportmg Others,
Postvention Training & Events

Launched in April 2020, the Derby and Derbyshire
Emotional Health and Wellbeing website is a
central point for local information, signposting and
resources, so that it is easier for people to find the
information they need. It is used by people of all
ages living, visiting and working in Derbyshire and
Derby City.

This website has been designed collaboratively with
specialists and people with lived experience. The site
provides access to information about local services
including urgent support and helplines in case of
crisis. It includes information about training and
national links for mental health, suicide prevention
and wellbeing. The site is continuously evolving

and regularly updated with new information as the
demand for support changes over time.

There are several partners involved including
NHS Derby and Derbyshire Integrated Care Board,
who fund the project, Derby City Council, Derbyshire Voluntary Community Partners and
Derbyshire Deaf Alliance.

From April 2020 to 31 January 2023, the number of users reached 50,735, with 221,103
pages viewed.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Pu bliﬁga@quiort 2023

i


https://derbyandderbyshireemotionalhealthandwellbeing.uk/
https://derbyandderbyshireemotionalhealthandwellbeing.uk/

Do you need further advice or support?

You may be reading this report and reflecting about your own mental health and wellbeing or
looking at it because you are concerned about a friend, family member or loved one. Often,
talking to someone who is not involved in your situation can help. You might find it easier to
contact someone in writing, by email or by text. Let’s have a look at some contact details for
organisations that can support.

’ Derbyshire Mental Health Support Line: ‘ Derbyshire Victim Support helpline:
0800 028 0077 - Free, 24h 0800 612 6505 and Derbyshire Victim
Carers UK helpline: Support BSL helpline; Live Chat -

0800 808 7777; Contact form: www.victimsupport.org.uk/resources/
www.carersuk.org/about-us/contact-us derbyshire/

SHOUT - Free Mental Health Text

Samaritans helpline: 116 123 - Free, . .
Messaging Service: Text SHOUT to

24h; email jo@samaritans.org or write a

letter to Freepost SAMARITANS LETTERS 85258; if you are deaf, text DEAF to 85258
SANELline: 0845 767 8000: Cruse Bereavement Derby and South
email: sup gort@sane.org’.uk Derbyshire helpline: 01332 332098

. . email: derbyshire@cruse.org.uk
Mind Info Line: 0300 123 3393 and .

‘ for callers with a hearing or speech Cruse Bereavement Chesterfield
impairment: 18001 0300 123 3393; email: helpline: 01246 550080
info@mind.org.uk Text: 86463 Hope Again helpline: Freephone 0808
Campaign Against Living Miserably 808 1677 for young people (from Cruse
(CALM) helpline: 0800 58 58 58; webchat - Bereavement Support)
www.thecalmzone.net/get-support ‘ Child Bereavement UK helpline:

‘ National Bullying helpline: 0800 02 888 40 email:

0845 22 55 787; email: helpline@childbereavementuk.org

help@nationalbullyinghelpline.co.uk The Survivors of Bereavement by

Refuge Domestic Abuse helpline: Suic?de (SQBS) helpline: 0300 11 5065
‘ 0808 2000 247 - Free, 24h and Refuge email: email.support@uksobs.org

Domestic Abuse BSL helpline: o Chesterfield SOBS helpline:

www.nationaldahelpline.org.uk/en/ 07507 692029

Contact-us o Derby SOBS helpline: 07930 096112
‘ Respect Men’s Advice helpline: o Ilkeston SOBS helpline: 07538 796867

Fregphone 0808 8910327. For male o Swadlincote SOBS helpline:

victims of domestic abuse. 07399 552142

999 BSL - UK Emergency Video Relay NHS 111 is also available for urgent,
Service - About : 999 BSL non-life-threatening medical help and

Support Line: 01708 765200; advice, and NHS BSL 111 for British Sign
email:

info@supportline.org.uk Language users.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofptgéeéchgzal Report 2023



http://www.carersuk.org/about-us/contact-us
mailto:jo%40samaritans.org?subject=
mailto:support%40sane.org.uk?subject=
mailto:info%40mind.org.uk?subject=
http://www.thecalmzone.net/get-support
mailto:help%40nationalbullyinghelpline.co.uk?subject=
mailto:info%40supportline.org.uk?subject=
http://www.victimsupport.org.uk/resources/derbyshire/
http://www.victimsupport.org.uk/resources/derbyshire/
mailto:derbyshire%40cruse.org.uk?subject=
mailto:helpline%40childbereavementuk.org?subject=
mailto:email.support%40uksobs.org?subject=

Next steps and recommendations

A need for a whole system approach to mental health

This report has described and shown how mental health and wellbeing is an important part

of everyone’s life, no matter what age. Mental health and wellbeing are influenced by the
conditions in which people are born, grow up, live, and work in and the Covid-19 pandemic and
current cost-of-living pressures highlighted this. These wider determinants of health have been
described in this report and more joined up action is needed.

The diagram displays the wider determinants and how the conditions people live in, can
contribute to mental health and wellbeing. Some of these factors are protective factors and
contribute to good mental health, whereas others are risk factors and contribute to poorer
mental health.

d"‘-‘__‘

sanitation

%
Q\BN- \: ES”’[[; 0,%‘ waer qnd
: /“

f health care
| ogriculture F . -L
and food f
producﬁon \ housing
,_ \ age, sex & '
\ consmunonul fucfots 7 '

e - !

Source: Dahlgren and Whitehead 1991 and Sustainability Journal

To promote good mental health and wellbeing an approach is needed that looks at all of these
factors. This is called a whole system approach. A whole system approach to mental health
recognises that the conditions people live and work in are as important as individual factors

to shaping someone’s mental health and wellbeing. This means that action and support is
focussed not just on individuals but within communities, businesses, schools, housing services
and many other areas. It is about mental health being everyone’s business.

This report has described a snapshot of how Derbyshire County Council’s Public Health Team
and partners, alongside communities, have worked together to support people with their mental
health and wellbeing. Public Health have worked in collaboration across many different areas
and organisations in Derbyshire including in schools, at workplaces, and at football matches.
More work is needed, and the following recommendations identify the next steps for 2023/24.

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Publicpea(ﬁ@uﬁgort 2023

i



11. Next steps and recommendations

Recommendations

1) Across the System, Public Health recommends a whole system approach to mental
health is adopted in Derbyshire.

2) Locally, Derbyshire Public Health alongside partners and communities will build on
this positive work over the next 12 months by:

« Continuing to utilise a life course approach to mental health, with a focus on children
and young people’s support and projects, including reviewing their impact. The aim is
to give children and young people the best start in life and positively influence wellbeing
into adulthood.

« Monitoring and responding to the mental health effects of the Covid-19 pandemicin
Derbyshire, with a recognition that medium and longer-term impacts may yet be seen.

« Continuing to support those who are facing the greatest challenges from the cost-of-living
pressures. Winter 2023/24 may be equally as challenging for many as winter 2022/23.

o This requires a focus on financial and mental health support in the short term as well
as embedding early intervention approaches to help prevent potential mental health
impacts longer term.

+ Using the Core20PLUSS5 population approach to focus action for the 20% most deprived
communities and those experiencing SMI, with the aim of reducing health inequalities in
mental and physical health.

3) Individually, everyone can have a positive role to play in supporting others with their
mental health and wellbeing. So, the call to action in this report is simple, we want as many
people as possible across the county to do the following:

e Let’s Chat « Let’s Ask e Let’s Listen

JIL

fed=
IR
‘?:c -

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofplﬁ@eéth Sﬂal Report 2023




11. Next steps and recommendations

Let’s Chat 1 - Tips on how to start the conversation

Show you are willing
to listen and talk

Be patient

@ Besupportive
@ Beyourself

Look after yourself

Listen, don’tjudge @
Step up and make the move f/

Let’s Chat 2 - How to support or check in on someone

Text a friend Host a coffee morning

~ (> Shareyour ‘small wins’
with others

Checkuponalovedone ¢

Ask someonehow

they are doing Check in at team meetings

Let’s Chat 3 - Spotting signs of poor mental health

Mood swings or low mood Poor memory

Low self-esteem @ @ Feeling overwhelmed

Feeling tense or anxious @ @ Behaviour change

Not sleeping properly

Let’s Chat 4 - People with good emotional and mental health

Many people with good emotional and mental health are able to:

Be confident in themselves Express their emotions

Engage and interact withthe @&
world around them

~ (0 Playapositive role in their
home and work life

Manage stress and change @

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Pu blicﬁga@uﬁsort 2023

i



Acknowledgements

With thanks to:

+ Annette Appleton, Project Officer
(Strategic Intent)

+ Andrea Barber, Health Improvement
Practitioner (Health Improvement)

« Lauren Bird, Advanced Public Health
Practitioner (Knowledge & Intelligence)

« Rosanna Brown, Public Health Practitioner,
(Localities Team)

« James Creaghan, Public Health Lead
(Health Improvement Team)

» Michael Davie, Health Improvement
Practitioner (Health Improvement Team)

+ Shirley Devine, Group Manager
(Knowledge & Intelligence)

« Helene Denness, Assistant Director of
Public Health

« Thom Dunn, Assistant Director of
Public Health

« Carol Ford, Public Health Lead (Best Start)

« Marina Fournier-Farmer, Website &

Information Coordinator (Mental Health and
Suicide Prevention Team

« Richard Flint, Advanced Public Health
Practitioner (Knowledge & Intelligence)

« Jo Hall, Principal Clinical Psychologist/
Clinical Lead (Psychological Insights Team)

+ Melanie Hani, Public Health Wellbeing
Counsellor (Mental Health and Suicide
Prevention Team)

« Ellie Houlston, Director of Public Health

« Victor Jeganathan, Behavioural Scientist
(Psychological Insights Team)

« Claire Jones, Public Health Lead
(Health Protection)

« Amelia Kwan Su Yin, Junior Doctor (F2)

+ Ellen Langton, Group Manager
(Commissioning and Strategic Intent)

«lain Little, Assistant Director of Public Health

« Caroline Mackie, Public Health Lead (Healthcare
Public Health and High Peak Locality)

+ Jo McGarrigle, Healthcare Public Health
Practitioner (Best Start Team)

+ Nicky Mount, Project Manager
(Prevention Team)

« Louise Noon, Public Health Lead
(Health Improvement)

« Luke Oldham, Service Development Officer
(Mental Health and Suicide Prevention Team)

+Gillian Quayle, Service Development Officer
(Wider Determinants)

« Lois Race, Public Health Lead
(Financial Inclusion)

+Nicola Richmond, (Knowledge & Intelligence)
« Ruth Shaw, Project Officer (Strategic Intent)
+Vicky Smyth, Group Manager

(Health Improvement)

+ Rebecca Symes, Speciality Registrar in
Public Health

« Jon Townshend, Service Manager
(Commissioning Team)

« Luan Wilde, Advanced Public Health
Practitioner (Localities)

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofﬁt&@eéthggal Report 2023




« American Psychiatric Association, Stigma,
Prejudice and Discrimination Against People

Bibliography, sources and further reading

+ Gov.UK, Public Health England, Perinatal
mental health

with Mental Illness

« British Heart Foundation, Heart Matters,
Heart disease and mental health

« British Medical Association, Health at a price

« Hasum AlWaer et al, Unhealthy

Neighborhood Syndrome.
« Joseph Rowntree Foundation, UK Poverty
2023 The essential guide to understanding

Reducing the impact of poverty

« British Red Cross, 7 advantages of mental
health training that will help you deliver value

« Campaign to end loneliness, Health impact

« Census 2021. Cost-of-living and depression in
Adults, Great Britain

+ Dahlgren and Whitehead, Policies and
Strategies to Promote Social Equity in Health

« Derbyshire County Council, Derby and

Derbyshire, Emotional Health and Wellbeing
+ Derbyshire County Council, Derby City
Council mental health training

« Derbyshire County Council, Mental health

and wellbeing
+ Derbyshire County Council, Mental
health training

+ Derbyshire County Council, Mortality
& Morbidity

+ Derbyshire County Council, Stepping up
to the challenge Director of Public Health

Annual Report 2022
+ Derbyshire County Council, Travel Smart Week

+ Derbyshire County Council, Warm Spaces

+ Derbyshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust,
Perinatal (mother and baby services)

+ Derbyshire Voluntary Action, Mental Health
Support Pack

+ End Fuel Poverty Coalition, Coalition reacts to

Energy Price Guarantee announcement

« Gov.UK, National statistics English indices of
deprivation 2019

+ Gov.UK, Public Health England, Early vears
high impact area 2: Supporting maternal and
family mental health

+ Gov.UK, Public Health England, Health
matters: Prevention - a life course approach

poverty in the UK

« Mental Health Foundation, Children and
young people

» Mental Health Foundation, Long-term
physical conditions and mental health

« Mental Health Foundation, Mental health
and the cost-of-living crisis report: another
pandemic in the making?

« Mental Health Foundation, Prevention and

mental health: Understanding the evidence
so that we can address the greatest health

challenge of our times
« Mentell, Men, is it time to talk?

+ MHFA England, Resources

« Mind, Almost 20 million adults never speak
about mental health - and it’s set to get
worse due to the cost-of-living crisis

+ Money and Mental Health Policy Institute.
A tale of two crises: the cost-of-living and
mental health

+Money and Mental Health Policy Institute,

Bombarded: reducing the psychological harm
caused by the cost-of-living crisis

+ Money Saving Expert, What is the Energy Price
Cap? How does it work and how much is it?

« National Children’s Bureau, What is infant
mental health and why does it matter so
much during COVID-19?

+ NHS Derbyshire Community Health Services,
Derbyshire Family Health Service

«NHS England, Adult and older adult
mental health

«NHS England - South West, Physical Health in
Severe Mental lllness (SMI

« NHS The Tavistock and Portman, THRIVE
Framework for System Change

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director of Pu bliﬁga@qu?ort 2023

i


https://www.psychiatry.org/patients-families/stigma-and-discrimination
https://www.psychiatry.org/patients-families/stigma-and-discrimination
https://www.psychiatry.org/patients-families/stigma-and-discrimination
https://www.bhf.org.uk/informationsupport/heart-matters-magazine/wellbeing/mental-health/mental-health-survey
https://www.bma.org.uk/media/2084/health-at-a-price-2017.pdf
https://www.bma.org.uk/media/2084/health-at-a-price-2017.pdf
https://blog.redcrossfirstaidtraining.co.uk/7-advantages-of-mental-health-training-that-will-help-deliver-value
https://blog.redcrossfirstaidtraining.co.uk/7-advantages-of-mental-health-training-that-will-help-deliver-value
https://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/health-impact/
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ons.gov.uk%2Fpeoplepopulationandcommunity%2Fhealthandsocialcare%2Fmentalhealth%2Farticles%2Fcostoflivinganddepressioninadultsgreatbritain%2F29septemberto23october2022&data=05%7C01%7Chelena.lee16%40nhs.net%7C2bd06c7df71a4799fd4508db2bbf7b1c%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638151873623461217%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kk9mVOa3PfdYhA2P9sJakUIS1tc%2BFWElEgF1ybqpqlQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ons.gov.uk%2Fpeoplepopulationandcommunity%2Fhealthandsocialcare%2Fmentalhealth%2Farticles%2Fcostoflivinganddepressioninadultsgreatbritain%2F29septemberto23october2022&data=05%7C01%7Chelena.lee16%40nhs.net%7C2bd06c7df71a4799fd4508db2bbf7b1c%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638151873623461217%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kk9mVOa3PfdYhA2P9sJakUIS1tc%2BFWElEgF1ybqpqlQ%3D&reserved=0
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/5095964_Policies_and_strategies_to_promote_social_equity_in_health_Background_document_to_WHO_-_Strategy_paper_for_Europe
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/5095964_Policies_and_strategies_to_promote_social_equity_in_health_Background_document_to_WHO_-_Strategy_paper_for_Europe
https://derbyandderbyshireemotionalhealthandwellbeing.uk/
https://derbyandderbyshireemotionalhealthandwellbeing.uk/
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-training/derby-city-council/derby-city-council-mental-health-training.aspx
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-training/derby-city-council/derby-city-council-mental-health-training.aspx
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing.aspx
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing.aspx
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-training/mental-health-training.aspx
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-and-wellbeing/mental-health-training/mental-health-training.aspx
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/life_expectancy_and_mortality/Mortality&MorbidityMentalv1.2.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/life_expectancy_and_mortality/Mortality&MorbidityMentalv1.2.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/specialist_reports_and_assessments/2022/DPHAR2022.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/specialist_reports_and_assessments/2022/DPHAR2022.pdf
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/reports/documents/health/specialist_reports_and_assessments/2022/DPHAR2022.pdf
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/transport-roads/transport-plans/sustainable-travel/travel-smart/travel-smart-week/travel-smart-week.aspx#:~:text=Our%20Travel%20Smart%20week%20takes,remember%20to%20travel%20safely%20too.
https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/social-health/health-and-wellbeing/your-health/keeping-warm-in-winter/warm-spaces/warm-spaces.aspx
https://www.derbyshirehealthcareft.nhs.uk/services/mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing/perinatal-mother-and-baby-services
https://s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/crstl-assets/health-wellbeing/files/31.01.23-DVA-Mental-Health-Support-Pack-Final.pdf
https://s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/crstl-assets/health-wellbeing/files/31.01.23-DVA-Mental-Health-Support-Pack-Final.pdf
https://www.endfuelpoverty.org.uk/coalition-reacts-to-energy-price-guarantee-announcement/
https://www.endfuelpoverty.org.uk/coalition-reacts-to-energy-price-guarantee-announcement/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/commissioning-of-public-health-services-for-children/early-years-high-impact-area-2-supporting-maternal-and-family-mental-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/commissioning-of-public-health-services-for-children/early-years-high-impact-area-2-supporting-maternal-and-family-mental-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/commissioning-of-public-health-services-for-children/early-years-high-impact-area-2-supporting-maternal-and-family-mental-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-life-course-approach-to-prevention/health-matters-prevention-a-life-course-approach
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-life-course-approach-to-prevention/health-matters-prevention-a-life-course-approach
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-mental-health-jsna-toolkit/4-perinatal-mental-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-mental-health-jsna-toolkit/4-perinatal-mental-health
https://www.mdpi.com/2071-1050/13/11/6232
https://www.mdpi.com/2071-1050/13/11/6232
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/uk_poverty_2023_-_the_essential_guide_to_understanding_poverty_in_the_uk_0_0.pdf
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/uk_poverty_2023_-_the_essential_guide_to_understanding_poverty_in_the_uk_0_0.pdf
https://www.jrf.org.uk/sites/default/files/jrf/uk_poverty_2023_-_the_essential_guide_to_understanding_poverty_in_the_uk_0_0.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/explore-mental-health/a-z-topics/children-and-young-people
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/explore-mental-health/a-z-topics/children-and-young-people
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/explore-mental-health/a-z-topics/long-term-physical-conditions-and-mental-health#:~:text=More%20than%2015%20million%20people,but%20anyone%20can%20be%20affected.
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/explore-mental-health/a-z-topics/long-term-physical-conditions-and-mental-health#:~:text=More%20than%2015%20million%20people,but%20anyone%20can%20be%20affected.
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/our-work/policy-and-advocacy/mental-health-and-cost-of-living-crisis-report
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/our-work/policy-and-advocacy/mental-health-and-cost-of-living-crisis-report
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/our-work/policy-and-advocacy/mental-health-and-cost-of-living-crisis-report
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/2022-06/MHF-Prevention-report-2019.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/2022-06/MHF-Prevention-report-2019.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/2022-06/MHF-Prevention-report-2019.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/2022-06/MHF-Prevention-report-2019.pdf
https://www.mentell.org.uk/
https://mhfaengland.org/mhfa-centre/resources/
https://www.mind.org.uk/news-campaigns/news/almost-20-million-adults-never-speak-about-mental-health-and-it-s-set-to-get-worse-due-to-the-cost-of-living-crisis/
https://www.mind.org.uk/news-campaigns/news/almost-20-million-adults-never-speak-about-mental-health-and-it-s-set-to-get-worse-due-to-the-cost-of-living-crisis/
https://www.mind.org.uk/news-campaigns/news/almost-20-million-adults-never-speak-about-mental-health-and-it-s-set-to-get-worse-due-to-the-cost-of-living-crisis/
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.moneyandmentalhealth.org%2Fpublications%2F&data=05%7C01%7Chelena.lee16%40nhs.net%7C2bd06c7df71a4799fd4508db2bbf7b1c%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638151873623461217%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kbwrDrTdDT2W7eiF6TdSsjJsH4%2BSIt5x5xM22F2MCOE%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.moneyandmentalhealth.org%2Fpublications%2F&data=05%7C01%7Chelena.lee16%40nhs.net%7C2bd06c7df71a4799fd4508db2bbf7b1c%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638151873623461217%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kbwrDrTdDT2W7eiF6TdSsjJsH4%2BSIt5x5xM22F2MCOE%3D&reserved=0
https://www.moneyandmentalhealth.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Bombarded_policy-note.pdf
https://www.moneyandmentalhealth.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Bombarded_policy-note.pdf
https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-energy-price-cap/
https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-energy-price-cap/
https://www.ncb.org.uk/about-us/media-centre/news-opinion/what-infant-mental-health-and-why-does-it-matter-so-much-during
https://www.ncb.org.uk/about-us/media-centre/news-opinion/what-infant-mental-health-and-why-does-it-matter-so-much-during
https://www.ncb.org.uk/about-us/media-centre/news-opinion/what-infant-mental-health-and-why-does-it-matter-so-much-during
https://derbyshirefamilyhealthservice.nhs.uk/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/mental-health/adults/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/mental-health/adults/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/south/our-work/mental-health/physical-health-smi/#:~:text=People%20with%20severe%20mental%20illness,appropriate%2C%20timely%20screening%20and%20treatment
https://www.england.nhs.uk/south/our-work/mental-health/physical-health-smi/#:~:text=People%20with%20severe%20mental%20illness,appropriate%2C%20timely%20screening%20and%20treatment
https://tavistockandportman.nhs.uk/care-and-treatment/treatments/thrive-framework/#:~:text=al.%2C%202019)-,The%20THRIVE%20Framework%20for%20system%20change%20(Wolpert%20et%20al.%2C,Trust%20and%20the%20Anna%20Freud
https://tavistockandportman.nhs.uk/care-and-treatment/treatments/thrive-framework/#:~:text=al.%2C%202019)-,The%20THRIVE%20Framework%20for%20system%20change%20(Wolpert%20et%20al.%2C,Trust%20and%20the%20Anna%20Freud

13. Bibliography, sources and further reading

+ NHS 75 Digital, Mental Health of Children and
Young People in England 2021 - wave 2 follow

« Office for National Statistics, census 2021,
Personal well-being in the UK, quarterly:

up to the 2017 survey
+NHS 75 England, Core20PLUS5 (adults) - an

approach to reducing healthcare inequalities

April 2011 to September 2021
« Office for National Statistics, Census 2021,
Worries about the rising costs of living, Great

«NIH, National Library Medicine, Economic

suicides in the Great Recession in Europe and
North America

«NIH, National Library of Medicine, Eleven-
year multimorbidity burden among 637 255

people with and without type 2 diabetes: a
population-based study using primary care

and linked hospitalisation data

+NIH, National Library Medicine, Life Event,
Stress and Illness

« NIH, National Library Medicine, Prenatal
and postpartum depression in fathers and
its association with maternal depression: a
meta-analysis

« NIHR National Institute for Health and

Care Research, Multiple long-term
conditions (multimorbidity): making

sense of the evidence

+ NSPCC Learning, Attachment and
child development

« Office for Health Improvement & Disparities,
Public Health Profiles

« Office for National Statistics, census 2021,

Coronavirus (COVID-19) latest insights - Office

for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk)

« Office for National Statistics, Census 2021,
CPIH Annual rate 00: All Items 2015=100 -
Office for National Statistics

Let's chat ‘

Britain: April to May 2022

« Oxford Academic, The Potential Public Health
Relevance of Social Isolation and Loneliness:
Prevalence, Epidemiology, and Risk Factors

+ Public Health England, Health matters: giving
every child the best start in life

+ Public Health England, What Good Looks Like
for Public Mental Health

« Royal Society for Public Health, RSPH’s new
report shows health will be the price we will
pay for the cost-of-living crisis

« Samaritans, Inequality and Suicide

« Samaritans, Socioeconomic disadvantage
and suicidal behaviour

« The Health Foundation, The continuing
impact of COVID-19 on health and inequalities

» The Health Foundation, Health Equity in
England: The Marmot Review 10 Years On

+ The Kings Fund, What are health inequalities?

« The London School of Economics and
Political Science, The cost-of-living crisis is a
public health issue

« The Yellow Sheet, What is “Mental health”

+ Timebanking UK, Strengthening Communities
« Unicef for every child, The first 1,000 days of
life: The brain’s window of opportunity

Let’s Chat about Mental Health and Wellbeing Director ofﬁt&@eéthggal Report 2023



https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2021-follow-up-to-the-2017-survey#highlights
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2021-follow-up-to-the-2017-survey#highlights
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2021-follow-up-to-the-2017-survey#highlights
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/24925987/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/24925987/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/24925987/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32611677/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32611677/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32611677/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32611677/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32611677/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3341916/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3341916/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20483973/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20483973/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20483973/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20483973/
https://evidence.nihr.ac.uk/collection/making-sense-of-the-evidence-multiple-long-term-conditions-multimorbidity/
https://evidence.nihr.ac.uk/collection/making-sense-of-the-evidence-multiple-long-term-conditions-multimorbidity/
https://evidence.nihr.ac.uk/collection/making-sense-of-the-evidence-multiple-long-term-conditions-multimorbidity/
https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/child-health-development/attachment-early-years
https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/child-health-development/attachment-early-years
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/conditionsanddiseases/articles/coronaviruscovid19latestinsights/wellbeing
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/conditionsanddiseases/articles/coronaviruscovid19latestinsights/wellbeing
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/inflationandpriceindices/timeseries/l55o/mm23
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/inflationandpriceindices/timeseries/l55o/mm23
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/bulletins/personalwellbeingintheukquarterly/april2011toseptember2021#:~:text=In%20the%20latest%20period%2C%20well,(July%20to%20Sept)%202021.
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/bulletins/personalwellbeingintheukquarterly/april2011toseptember2021#:~:text=In%20the%20latest%20period%2C%20well,(July%20to%20Sept)%202021.
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/worriesabouttherisingcostsoflivinggreatbritain/apriltomay2022
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/worriesabouttherisingcostsoflivinggreatbritain/apriltomay2022
https://academic.oup.com/ppar/article/27/4/127/4782506
https://academic.oup.com/ppar/article/27/4/127/4782506
https://academic.oup.com/ppar/article/27/4/127/4782506
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-giving-every-child-the-best-start-in-life/health-matters-giving-every-child-the-best-start-in-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-giving-every-child-the-best-start-in-life/health-matters-giving-every-child-the-best-start-in-life
https://www.adph.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/What-Good-Public-Mental-Health-Looks-Like-Final.pdf
https://www.adph.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/What-Good-Public-Mental-Health-Looks-Like-Final.pdf
https://www.rsph.org.uk/about-us/news/rsph-s-new-report-shows-health-will-be-the-price-we-will-pay-for-the-cost-of-living-crisis.html
https://www.rsph.org.uk/about-us/news/rsph-s-new-report-shows-health-will-be-the-price-we-will-pay-for-the-cost-of-living-crisis.html
https://www.rsph.org.uk/about-us/news/rsph-s-new-report-shows-health-will-be-the-price-we-will-pay-for-the-cost-of-living-crisis.html
https://www.samaritans.org/about-samaritans/research-policy/inequality-suicide/
https://media.samaritans.org/documents/Socioeconomic_disadvantage_and_suicidal_behaviour_-_Full.pdf
https://media.samaritans.org/documents/Socioeconomic_disadvantage_and_suicidal_behaviour_-_Full.pdf
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/long-reads/the-continuing-impact-of-covid-19-on-health-and-inequalities?gclid=Cj0KCQiAx6ugBhCcARIsAGNmMbgrErTpwuCjed3AtWGqe9fLdJG74Rn_NBxvIZncKm131TrBlDCPX3kaAvIrEALw_wcB
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/long-reads/the-continuing-impact-of-covid-19-on-health-and-inequalities?gclid=Cj0KCQiAx6ugBhCcARIsAGNmMbgrErTpwuCjed3AtWGqe9fLdJG74Rn_NBxvIZncKm131TrBlDCPX3kaAvIrEALw_wcB
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIt4_88qf-_QIVChsrCh1kIwhmEAAYAiAAEgKthfD_BwE
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIt4_88qf-_QIVChsrCh1kIwhmEAAYAiAAEgKthfD_BwE
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/what-are-health-inequalities
https://blogs.lse.ac.uk/politicsandpolicy/the-cost-of-living-crisis-is-a-public-health-issue/#:~:text=The%20rising%20cost%20of%20living,physical%20health%20and%20well%2Dbeing.
https://blogs.lse.ac.uk/politicsandpolicy/the-cost-of-living-crisis-is-a-public-health-issue/#:~:text=The%20rising%20cost%20of%20living,physical%20health%20and%20well%2Dbeing.
https://yellowsheet.wordpress.com/what-is-mental-health/
https://timebanking.org/
https://www.unicef-irc.org/article/958-the-first-1000-days-of-life-the-brains-window-of-opportunity.html
https://www.unicef-irc.org/article/958-the-first-1000-days-of-life-the-brains-window-of-opportunity.html

Contact:

Public Health Department
Derbyshire County Council, County Hall, Matlock, Derbyshire DE4 3AG
Email: asch.public.health@derbyshire.gov.uk

@ DERBYSHIRE
County Council


mailto:asch.public.health%40derbyshire.gov.uk?subject=

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

DERBYSHIRE
County Council

FOR PUBLICATION
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
10 July 2023
Report of the Executive Director - Children's Services
Request for approval of increase in value of contract for supply and
delivery of groceries and provisions
(Cabinet Member for Education)
1. Divisions Affected
1.1 County-wide
2. Key Decision
2.1 Thisis a key decision because it is likely to result in the Council
incurring expenditure which is significant having regard to the budget for

the service or function concerned (this is currently defined as £500,000).

3. Purpose

3.1 The purpose of this report is to request Cabinet approval to increase the
value of the upcoming procurement in relation to a contract for the
supply and delivery of groceries and provisions for Derbyshire Catering
Service (Childrens Services) above that already approved in the
Forward Plan.

4. Information and Analysis

Page 61



4.1

5.1

The approved value on the Forward Plan for this procurement is £15m
and this was for a stated term of a 72 months (initial 2 years with 2
further possible extensions of 2 years).

The majority of the spend for this contract will come from the traded
services activities of Derbyshire Catering Service, Childrens Services.
This contract will also be used by Adult Social Care and Health,
Countryside Services, as well as Derby City Council’s Adult Care
establishments under an SLA agreement.

The value of the contract submitted for approval in the Forward Plan
was calculated last Autumn using internal spend data and industry
information regarding food pricing available at that time.

More recent indications including the continued widely reported increase
in food production costs, along with more recently available spend data
and pricing reviews submitted by suppliers as part of contractually
permitted scheduled price reviews, shows the previously approved
value to be below that expected to be needed during the proposed term
of the contract.

Forecasted spend values over the life of the contract, including
permitted extensions, are as below:

Childrens Services £16.2m (E2.7m per annum)
Adult Social Care and Health £2.5m (£428,400 annum)
Derby City Council £230,400 (£38,400 per annum)
Countryside Services £252,000 (£42,000 per annum)

The total value of the contract is now expected to be £19.2m.

It is requested that Cabinet approve the increase in value for the
contract, ahead of the publication of a tender for this requirement in the
summer of 2023.

Alternative Options Considered

The alternative option of not seeking approval to increase the value of
the contract for the supply and delivery of groceries and provisions and
to instead reduce the value of the contract approved under the Forward
Plan would mean that the supply may not be contracted up to the date
initially approved in the Forward Plan. This may lead to the risk that the
Council may be exposed to the volatility of food pricing at that point. As
a traded service, Derbyshire Catering Service would be financially
disadvantaged without the ability to forecast and have certainty of
pricing.

Page 62



Implications

6.1 Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the
preparation of the report.

7. Background Papers

7.1 None identified

8. Appendices

8.1 Appendix 1 — Implications

9. Recommendation(s)

That Cabinet approves the increase in value of the upcoming
procurement in relation to a contract for the supply of groceries and
provisions from the originally approved value in the Forward Plan of
£15million, to £19.2million.

10. Reasons for Recommendation(s)

10.1 The recommendation to approve the increase in contract value is made
to ensure the supply remains contracted for the originally proposed and
approved period in the Forward Plan, as well as to avoid the risk of the
Council being exposed to the volatility of food pricing. As a traded
service, Derbyshire Catering Service would be financially disadvantaged
without the ability to forecast and have certainty of pricing.

11. Isit necessary to waive the call in period?

11.1 No

Report Suzanne Contact Suzanne.NichollsHope@derbyshire.gov.uk
Author: Hope details:

Page 63



Appendix 1
Implications

Financial

1.1 The Derbyshire Catering Service is fully traded and extra costs incurred
would be met from traded income.

If the increase in the contract value is not agreed there is a risk of
exposure to higher food costs given the current market volatility. The
existing contract and its contractual arrangements provide the Service
with a degree of certainty in forecasting costs and pricing.

Legal

2.1 The Standing Orders Relating to Contracts which form part of the
Council’s Financial Regulations state that all procurements of contracts
with a spend above £50,000 must be included in the Forward Plan;
approval to award a contract can then be given by the relevant
Executive Director. Where the procurement of a contract is not detailed
in the Forward Plan (which will include a situation such as this one
where the value set out in the Forward Plan is insufficient), approval to
award will need to be sought from Cabinet or Cabinet Member which
would delay the award.

2.2 The Director of Legal Services is satisfied that ensuring that the
Forward Plan contains the correct contract value before the
procurement is commenced is both prudent and aids transparency.

Human Resources

3.1 N/A

Information Technology

4.1 N/A

Equalities Impact

51 N/A

Corporate objectives and priorities for change

6.1 N/A

Page 64



Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental Sustainability,
Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding)

7.1 N/A

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

DERBYSHIRE
County Council

FOR PUBLICATION

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
10 July 2023
Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services
Gamesley Early Excellence Centre - Relocation
(Cabinet Member for Education)
1. Divisions Affected
1.1 Etherow
2. Key Decision
2.1 This is not a key decision

3. Purpose
3.1 For Cabinet to:

a) Consider the outcome of the non-statutory consultation on the proposed co-
location of Gamesley Early Excellence Centre to the Gamesley Primary
School site

b) Approve the transfer of Gamesley Early Excellence Centre to the Gamesley
Primary School site.

3.1 Information and Analysis

Gamesley Early Excellence Centre, Winster Mews, Gamesley, Glossop,
Derbyshire SK13 OLU is a 52 place Local Authority Maintained Nursery School
which caters for pupils aged from 2 to 5 years. Since the vacation of an external
childcare provider from within the same building, there has been a substantial

Page 67



5.1

amount of empty space. This has subsequently increased the running costs of
the building and poses challenges for the future sustainability of the Nursery
School. DCC recognises the fundamental importance of the Nursery to the
Community and to ensure that the Nursery provision is viable for the future
proposes transferring the Early Excellence Centre within the footprint of
Gamesley Primary School which is next door, a one minute walk away.

If approved, there will be remodelling works, new toilet facilities and a separate
entrance required at Gamesley Primary School in order for them to facilitate the
proposed move. The Academy trust, as landlord are in the process of obtaining
quotations for the works. On 24 January 2022 Cabinet approved £750,000 for
the Gamesley rationalisation project and this will fund the necessary works
required.

Consultation

A non-statutory consultation took place from 24 April 2023 to 6 June 2023. A
copy of the consultation document can be found in Appendix 2. There were 4
responses to the consultation which all were in support of the proposal. There
were common themes to the responses and therefore they have been
grouped together.

In support
4 respondents were in support of the proposal listing agreement with the
proposal and stating it would be beneficial to the pupils.

Space

2 respondents requested clarification over where the Nursery children would be
housed on the school site and wanted to ensure that there would be no negative
impact on the existing children at Gamesley Primary School or their staffing
ratios

Local Authority Response — The Nursery will be run as a separate entity
within the school site and due to falling rolls in previous years, two classrooms
are able to be made available for the Nursery to operate from. There will be no
impact on the noise levels or staffing ratios of existing Gamesley Primary School
children.

Housing

1 respondent queried the impact of capacity within Gamesley Primary School
when the new housing estate was completed and wanted assurance that this
had been considered.

Local Authority Response — When reviewing the appraisal options for the
proposed co-location, an assessment of the Primary Schools capacity was
undertaken. The school has capacity for 315 pupils, but due to falling birth rates
in the locality, the projected numbers for the school are due to decrease as
below which leaves the school with accommodation to house the Nursery

Page 68



School. The Authority constantly monitors demographics to ensure that there
are sufficient school places and will continue to do so. The majority of the
housing in Gamesley Primary Schools normal area has now been completed,
with 72 dwellings due to be completed in 2023/24. The completed housing has
been included in the projections.

Year 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28
Projected | 196 188 182 181 182

Primary
School
Places
Surplus | 119 127 133 134 181
Primary
School
Places

6. Alternative Options Considered

6.1 Not to proceed — The school would remain in its existing location but the
budget would not be balanced.

7. Implications

7.1 Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the preparation of
the report.

8. Background Papers
8.1  These are held on file in the Children’s Services Development Section
9. Appendices

9.1 Appendix 1- Implications.
9.2 Appendix 2- Non statutory Consultation Document

10. Recommendation(s)
That Cabinet:
a) Notes the outcome of the non-statutory consultation on the proposed co-
location of Gamesley Early Excellence Centre to the Gamesley Primary

School site

b) Approves the transfer of Gamesley Early Excellence Centre to the Gamesley

Page 69



Primary School site.

11. Reasons for Recommendation(s)
11.1 In response to the support from the consultation.
12. Is it necessary to waive the call in period?

12.1 No

Report Author: Jenny Webster Contact details: x35808

Page 70



Appendix 1

Implications

Financial

1.1

If approved, there will be some remodelling, new toilet facilities and separate Nursery
entrance required at Gamesley Primary School to ensure that the accommodation
offered is suitable for Nursery Provision. The Academy Trust have engaged with a
contractor and will prove DCC with a quotation for the works. It is envisaged that the
financing of the works will be met by the Gamesley rationalisation budget (£750,000)
which was approved by Cabinet on the 24 January 2022.

Legal

2.1

The Local Authority can make limited changes to maintained schools which are
not prescribed changes under The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013. These limited changes include
the transfer of a school to a new site where the proposed main site is within two
miles of the main entrance of the school on its current site. Local Authorities are
nevertheless required to adhere to the usual principles of public law to act
rationally and within their powers, take into account all relevant and no irrelevant
considerations; and follow a fair procedure.

2.2 The Department for Education statutory guidance ‘Making significant
changes (‘prescribed alterations’) to maintained schools’ dated January 2023,
explains that in making changes that are not prescribed, local authorities and
governing bodies will work together and

ensure that the proposal is aligned with wider place planning/organisational
arrangements, and that any necessary consents have been gained;

not undermine the quality of education provided or the financial viability of other
‘good’ and ‘outstanding’ schools in the local area;

ensure open and fair consultation with parents, any affected educational
institutions in the area and other interested parties.

they have secured planning permission if applicable

they have the consent of the land owner where the land is not owned by the
governing body

Human Resources

3.1

None

Information Technology

4.1

None

Page 71



Equalities Impact

5.1  The local authority is required to have ‘due regard’ to the duties set out in
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (the Public Sector Equality Duty, ‘PSED’)
in determining these proposals. The proposals aren’t considered to have any
impact on PSED.

Corporate objectives and priorities for change

6.1 Not applicable

Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental Sustainability, Property and
Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding)

7.1 Derbyshire County Council has a statutory duty to ensure there are sufficient
primary and secondary school places and is committed to working in close
partnership with schools, academy trusts, the dioceses and key partners to
ensure that the supply of school places across Derbyshire is in the right
location, is of sufficient size, is viable and of good quality. We know that
schools can face challenges in meeting pupils’ needs, particularly where pupil
numbers are falling, and that in some cases, changes to the pattern of school
organisation in an area can help secure the viability of schools, improve
opportunities and raise standards.

Page 72



Appendix 2

Proposal to Co-locate Gamesley Early Excellence Centre to
Gamesley Primary School

Introduction

Gamesley Early Excellence Centre, Winster Mews, Gamesley, Glossop,
Derbyshire SK13 OLU is a 52 place Nursery School which caters for pupils
aged from 2 to 5 years.

The school is owned and run by Derbyshire County Council (DCC) and since
the vacation of an external childcare provider from within the same building,
there has been a substantial amount of empty space. This has then
subsequently increased the running costs of the building and poses
challenges for the future sustainability of the Nursery School.

DCC recognises the fundamental importance of the Nursery to the Community
and this proposal will ensure that the Nursery provision is viable for the future.

The Executive Headship role of the Nursery School is currently being
undertaken by the Headteacher of Gamesley Primary School, the former head
leaving the post at the end of the spring term.

The Primary School staff are also supporting and developing strong links with
the Nursery School staff in other key areas such as safeguarding and pastoral
care.

It is proposed that the co-location will commence from the 1st September
2023.

What are we consulting on?

DCC, working with the Governing body of Gamesely Early Excellence Centre
and Victorious Academy Trust is proposing to relocate the school to co-locate
on the site of Gamesely Primary School.

Gamesley Primary School opened as a new school on 1st December 2018 as
part of Victorious Academy Trust. The school is located 160 feet from the
Early Excellence building, a one-minute walk.

The school currently has a capacity of 315 with a pupil admission of 45. The
current admission numbers have been significantly below this for a number of

years and this has meant that there is sufficient accommodation within the
school footprint to accommodate the Nursery school.

The approach to co-location

Both schools wish to retain their individual identity and autonomy, but also

Page 73



make the most of the opportunities that co-location presents to co-operate and
collaborate, enriching the learning, pastoral and social experiences of pupils,
staff, parents and the local community through the sharing of knowledge,
ideas, sKkills, expertise and resources.

The schools’ vision is that the co-location be characterised by a sense of
developing a learning campus with a shared educational ethos. Strong and
meaningful links between the schools will ensure that everyone feels valued
within an ethos of mutual respect, and that a range of exciting joint initiatives
can develop organically over time.

How it will work

The schools are conscious of the need to work with pupils, staff, parents,
governors and the local community to prepare them for the co-location,
address any anxieties they may have, and ensure the change is as smooth as
possible. In order to achieve this, they intend to develop a transition plan
mapping out steps for collaboration, which along with the current Headship
arrangements can build up gradually with time.

Anticipated benefits

It is anticipated that the co-location will result in many mutual benefits for staff,
pupils, parents and the local community.

Gamesley Primary School has a well-recognised strong commitment to
inclusion which is demonstrated by the open, welcoming approach of staff,
pupils and governors to the concept of co-location and the staff's immediate
offers of things they would like to share with the Nursery School.

Some of the anticipated benefits for both schools are as follows:

Co-location will provide the opportunity for a smoother transition to Primary
School for the Nursery pupils as they will be familiar with the site and staff.
Staff from both schools will have valuable opportunities to share knowledge
and skills in relation to inclusion, special needs and a range of curriculum
areas.

Both schools will benefit from economies in sharing some facilities (such as
specialist learning spaces, dining and some play spaces) as well as staff
(such as premises and kitchen staff) and resources and services (such as
ICT).

The consultation and decision making process

This consultation will run from 24th April to 26th May 2023.

There is no formal requirement for a statutory consultation as the distance
between the two schools is less than two miles.

However to fully engage with the parents/guardians, wider community and
stakeholders we welcome your views on the proposal and all observations will
be considered very carefully and a decision will be sought by Derbyshire
County Council Cabinet Members on the 6th July 2023.

Page 74



To take part please email your views to jenny.webster@derbyshire.gov.uk ,
write to Jenny Webster, Derbyshire County Council, Children’s Services,
County Hall - Room 178, Matlock, Derbyshire, DE4 3AG or alternatively hand
them into the school office in a sealed envelope marked CONSULTATION for
the attention of Jenny Webster (Childrens Services).

Page 75


mailto:jenny.webster@derbyshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

Agenda ltem 9

DERBYSHIRE
County Council

FOR PUBLICATION
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
10 July 2023
Report of the Executive Director - Children's Services
Children's Services Spire Lodge Capital Budget
(Cabinet Member for Children and Families)

Divisions Affected

All Divisions

Key Decision

This is a key decision because it is likely to:

a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or savings which
are significant having regard to the budget for the service or function
concerned. It will result in the Council incurring expenditure totalling
£1.136m; and

b) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in

an area comprising two or more electoral areas in the County.

Purpose

To approve the allocation of £600,433 from the unallocated balances of

the Children’s Homes Improvements funding and £536,000 from

contingency reserves to the Spire Lodge replacement project at the

Ashbrook Site (adjacent to Ashgate Croft School (Chesterfield)

Information and Analysis

Original costs were provided in 2016 and 2018 based upon an
incomplete feasibility study. The reports identified a significant back log

Page 77



411

41.2

4.2

4.3

of maintenance and poor building condition requiring replacement, as
well as a facility that was not able to meet current and future service
needs to support children with disabilities and families across
Derbyshire.

2016 Cabinet paper extract, Spire Lodge - £1.9m, based upon £1.8m
capital borrowing and £0.1m capital receipts.

‘Spire lodge is the poorest facility the Authority has that houses children
with disabilities. It has a backlog of maintenance in excess of £150,000.
Further improvements would be required to meet current standards but
there would remain fundamental deficiencies. This project is to provide
a purpose-built facility on a new site’.

2018 Cabinet paper extract, Spire Lodge - £2.225m.

‘The existing facilities at The Outback and Spire Lodge are not suitable
to meet the need of disabled children with more challenging behaviour
and complex needs. The proposed integrated Spire Lodge facility will
enable children with these needs to be accommodated by the authority.
Children with these needs are currently placed in private, often out of
county facilities, that can cost up to £500,000 per child. Typically, these
children require support packages costing £300,000-£350,000 per year.
This scheme will deliver cost efficiencies. The two additional high needs
long term beds will generate an annual saving to the authority of
£200,000. A business case demonstrating this is being finalised’.

Since 2018 further investigation into demands on specialist services,
build sites options and build design have been completed. An update
was provided to Cabinet on 11 March 2021 supporting a public
consultation in 2021. Finalised build design has now been completed,
resulting in a new feasibility study that will ensure services can meet
future preventative as well as responsive need, costed currently at
£5.5m. Funding of £4.125m has been previously approved by Cabinet
for this project: £1.9m approved 21 January 2016 from the 2016/17
Capital Strategy, £2.225m approved 25 January 2018 from the 2018/19
Capital Strategy. Totalling £4.125m budget, creating a short fall of
£1.375m.

Funding previously approved by Cabinet for this project:

£1.9m approved, 21 January 2016 from the 2016/17 Capital Strategy.
£2.225m approved, 25 January 2018 from the 2018/19 Capital Strategy.
Total £4.125m budget.

The following unallocated balances from Childrens Homes

Improvements funding is available to be meet some of the funding
shortfall:

Page 78



5.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

8.2

2018-19 - £10,000 (£100,000 approved by Cabinet 26/7/18)
2019-20 — £90,433 (£100,000 approved by Cabinet 11/7/19)
2020-21 - £250,000 (approved by Cabinet 23/1/20)

2021-22 - £250,000 (approved by Cabinet 21/1/21)

Total unallocated balance of £600,433

It is proposed £536,000 be met from contingency reserves. Totalling
additional funding for the project of £1.136m.
If approved this will increase the available total budget to £5.26m.

Work is on-going to value engineer the project to identify savings for the
remaining shortfall of £238,567, from the current £5.5m costing. If the
value engineering works are unable to identify the required savings,
then a further request for capital will be made.

Consultation

Review of short break disability services was carried out by public
consultation between October and December 2021 and extensive wider
stakeholder engagement during 2020 and 2021. Identifying demand for
short break disability services and 58% preference for the new Spire
Lodge build to be located at the Ashbrook site option.

Alternative Options Considered

Do nothing, inadequate funding would be available to progress the
project.

Alternative build sites and feasibility studies have been completed which
identified the Ashbrook site as the preferred option financially and
operationally.

Implications

Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the
preparation of the report.

Background Papers

These are held in the Children’s Services Development Section.
2016/17 Capital Strategy, £1.9m approved by Cabinet on 21 January
2016.

2018/19 Capital Strategy, £2.225m approved by Cabinet on 25 January
2018.

Page 79



8.3 Derbyshire Short Break Principles Proposal, approved by Cabinet on 11
March 2021.

9. Appendices

9.1  Appendix 1 — Implications
10. Recommendation(s)
That Cabinet:

a) Approves the allocation £600,433 from the unallocated balances of
the Children’s Homes Improvements funding and £536,000 from
contingency reserves to the Spire Lodge replacement project.

11. Reasons for Recommendation(s)
11.1 To enable the on-going development to replace Spire Lodge with a
flagship build that supports future service demands and family needs as

well as provide emergency provision and crisis support.

12. Is it necessary to waive the call in period?

121 No
Report Luke Impey Contact Luke.Impey@derbyshire.gov.uk
Author: details:

Page 80



Implications

Financial

Appendix 1

1.1 The financial considerations are as explained in section 4.2 / 4.3 of the

report.

1.2  The funding balance is as set out in the table below:

Year Capital Cabinet Original purpose
Balance date
£
2016-2017 1,900,000 | 21/01/2016 | Spire Lodge
replacement
2018-2019 2,225,000 | 25/01/2018 | Spire Lodge
replacement
2018-2019 10,000 | 26/07/2018 | CS CHs Improvements
balance
2019-2020 90,433 | 11/07/2019 | CS CHs Improvements
balance
2020-2021 250,000 | 23/01/2020 | CS CHs Improvements
balance
2021-2022 250,000 | 21/01/2021 | CS CHs Improvements
balance
contingency 536,000 contingency reserves
reserves
TOTAL 5,261,433
238,567 On-going potential
value engineering
TOTAL 5,500,000 Current costing

estimate

1.3  All goods, works and services required to undertake the identified
projects in the report will be procured and awarded in accordance with
the Council’s Financial Regulations.

Legal

2.1 The Breaks for Carers of Disabled Children Regulations 2011 requires
local authorities to have regard to the needs of carers:
Regulation 3 provides that a local authority must-
(@) have regard to the needs of those carers who would be unable to
provide care unless breaks for caring were given to them; and

Page 81




2.2

2.3

24

(b)  have regard to the needs of those carers who would be able to
provide care for their disabled child more effectively if breaks from
caring were given to them to allow them to:

)] undertake education, training or any regular leisure activity,
(i)  meet the needs of other children in the family more
effectively, or

(iii)  carry out day to day tasks which they must perform in order
to run their household’

Under regulation 4

a local authority must provide, so far as is reasonably practicable, a
range of services which are sufficient to assist carers to continue to
provide care or to do so more effectively.

These range of services must include:

. day-time care in the homes of disabled children or elsewhere

. overnight care in the homes of disabled children or elsewhere

. educational or leisure activities for disabled children outside their
homes

. services available to assist carers in the evenings, at weekends

and during the school holidays.

The Children Act 1989 also requires the Local Authority to provide a
range of support services for children and includes a specific duty
under section 20 to provide accommodation for children

The funding allocations are made in accordance with the local
authority’s financial regulations.

Human Resources

3.1

Any impact upon Derbyshire workforce will be investigated fully and
reported as appropriate. Considerations will be made and shared with
Cabinet when appropriate.

Information Technology

4.1

None

Equalities Impact

5.1

The proposed scheme will provide specialist provision for children with
disabilities and their families pupils to access support appropriate to
their needs. Reflected within the Short Break Programme Equality
Impact Assessment.

Page 82



Corporate objectives and priorities for change
6.1 Not applicable

Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental Sustainability,
Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding)

7.1  Not applicable

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the non-exempt minutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2023
	5 Acceptance of Department for Transport Capital Funding Grant 2023-24 and Defra Air Quality Grant 2023
	6 Director of Public Health Annual Report
	Appendix 2: Director of Public Health Annual Report
	1	Foreword from Director of Public Health
	2	Update on last year’s report
	3	Aims and objectives of the report
	4	Introduction 
	5	Mental health through the life course 
	6	The impact on mental health from Covid-19
	7	The impact of cost-of-living pressures on mental health
	8	Population mental health 
	9	Working together to support people with their mental health and wellbeing across Derbyshire 
	10	Do you need further advice or support?
	11	Next steps and recommendations 
	12	Acknowledgements
	13	Bibliography, sources and further reading


	7 Request for approval of increase in value of contract for supply and delivery of groceries and provisions
	8 Proposal to Co-locate Gamesley Early Excellence Centre
	Implications
	Legal
	Human Resources
	Information Technology
	Equalities Impact
	Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental Sustainability, Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding)
	What are we consulting on?
	The approach to co-location
	How it will work
	Anticipated benefits
	The consultation and decision making process

	9 Spire Lodge Capital
	11 To approve, as a correct record, the exempt minutes of the meeting held 15 June 2023
	12 Owner Operated Plant Hire Framework - Value Amendment
	13 Long Term Waste Management Contract - update

